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Our Strategic

Focus
Our vision is clear: we’re focused on becoming the leading energy
delivery and marketing company in the Northeast region. (Page 6)

• Our approach to growth is a balanced one; concentrating on what
we do well, not trying to be all things to all markets.
• We’re focused on the 11 state geographic region where 25 percent of
the nation’s energy is consumed.
• Our strategy is standing the test of time. Continuing to deliver on a
path set several years ago is testament to the strength of our vision
and our team.
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Our Strategy is Yielding

Results
2001 was a year in which we accomplished most of what we set out
to do. As the leading regional provider of energy products and
services and one of the top energy marketers in the Northeast, we
are solidly positioned to continue delivering results.

• NU has never been financially stronger. We
have a level of financial strength and flexibility
needed to fund our future growth. Page 7

• Our key regulated businesses— CL&P, PSNH,
Yankee Gas and WMECO —are positioned
for growth. Page 8

• Results at Select Energy showed significant
gains in revenue growth, reaching $3 billion
in 2001. Page 9

• To meet the need for energy delivery infrastructure expansion, our Transmission Business unit
launched $1 billion in expansion plans. Page 10

• Generation services are adding to the growth of
our competitive businesses and will continue to
deliver year over year growth. Page 11
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Dear Fellow

Shareowner

Stronger, brighter and a sharp focus on delivering
results—I believe these words best describe Northeast
Utilities as we enter the second year of the new century.
2001 was a year in which we accomplished most of
what we set out to do. Revenues topped the $6.8 billion mark, and we now serve nearly two million retail
electric and gas customers in an 11 state region. We
successfully met a number of our long-term goals—
including the sale of Millstone Station for a record
price, the issuance of $2.1 billion of rate reduction
bonds on behalf of our three regulated electric companies, and the introduction of industry restructuring in
New Hampshire. At $243.5 million, reported earnings were the best we have recorded since 1995, supported greatly by a $115.6 million gain from the sale
of Millstone Station. In those few areas where we did
not achieve our targets, we consistently improved performance and set the stage for substantial growth in
coming years.
NU has never been financially stronger. Our balance sheet improvements resulted in multiple rounds
of credit upgrades, ending the year at the highest levels in decades. Our capitalization ratios were significantly stronger at the end of 2001 than a year earlier.
Our current ratio— 52 percent debt, two percent preferred stock and 46 percent common equity — is
among the best in our history. Additionally, we refinanced more than $1.7 billion of debt and credit
lines, generally all with more favorable terms. All of
these moves give us a high level of financial strength
and flexibility to fund our future growth.
And, that future is bright. Our key regulated businesses— Connecticut Light & Power (CL&P) and
Yankee Gas as well as Public Service of New
Hampshire (PSNH) and Western Massachusetts
2

Electric (WMECO)— are now positioned for growth.
We are pushing hard into the arena of interstate transmission, and we believe this will be an important
opportunity for us to expand our regulated earnings
base and fulfill our obligations to serve all of our customers as cost effectively as we can.
Our competitive businesses are hitting their top
line revenue targets for growth, although they do need
to deliver improved profitability.
Absolute earnings of our regulated businesses were
down in 2001 due to the sale of Millstone early in the
year and the resulting loss of wholesale revenues.
Earnings before preferred dividends for CL&P fell to
$109.8 million from $148.1 million in 2000. Results
at PSNH and North Atlantic Energy Company
(NAEC) declined as a result of implementation of
industry restructuring and an 11 percent reduction of
retail rates. While the combined earnings before preferred dividends of PSNH and NAEC totaled $86 million in 2001, compared to $100 million the previous
year, we were able to use the proceeds of restructuring
to buy back 10 percent of our common shares in 2001.
Results at NU’s competitive businesses showed
significant gains in revenue growth, but yielded lower
earnings. Revenues reached $3 billion in 2001
and delivered earnings of $5 million compared to
revenues of $1.9 billion and a contribution towards
NU’s consolidated earnings of $13.6 million in 2000.
Management will be keenly focused in 2002 on
improving the bottom line at those businesses as
revenues continue to grow.
Many aspects of our performance at Select Energy
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Financial Highlights
2001

In millions, except per share amounts

2000

% change

Operating Revenues
Operating Income
Net Income/(Loss)

$ 6,874
539
244

$ 5,877
695
(29)

+17%
-22%
(a)

Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Common Share
Basic Common Shares Outstanding (Average)
Dividends Per Share

$ 1.80
135,632
$ 0.45

$ (0.20)
141,550
$ 0.40

(a)
-4%
+12%

Sales of Electricity (kWh-millions)
Electric Customers (Average)
Gas Customers (Average)
Property, Plant and Equipment

85,984
1,793
191
$ 3,822

75,660
1,754
185
$ 3,547

+14%
+2%
+3%
+8%

(a) Percentage greater than 100.

has been steadily improving with the exception of one
underperforming contract—standard offer service for
electric customers in Connecticut. More than two years
after restructuring, competition has yet to develop in
Connecticut—due primarily to the below-market standard offer rates. To stimulate development of this competitive marketplace, we asked regulators to consider a
one-cent increase in customers’ energy rates. Although
they rejected our initial request, the state Department
of Public Utility Control (DPUC) has opened hearings
into the “state of competition” and we are optimistic
that this issue will be addressed this year.
Partially offsetting the decreased regulated electric
earnings discussed above was a significant increase in
earnings at Yankee Gas, which NU acquired in
March. Yankee earned $25.8 million in 2001, compared to a loss of $700,000 in 2000. Additionally,
NU repurchased some 14.3 million shares in 2001
and is authorized to purchase another 11 million in
2002 and 2003. In 2001, the repurchases added
$0.06 per share and should add several additional
cents per share in 2002.
Our return on investment is at a predictable and
stable level. When we add in the dividend, total
return to shareholders’ growth over the past four years
has averaged approximately 13 percent on an annualized basis. Our dividend will continue to grow as our
regulated businesses grow and expand. We anticipate
continued 10 percent annual growth, up to 50 percent of regulated earnings.
A major disappointment for shareholders this year
was ConEd’s refusal to proceed in accordance with the
terms of the merger contract that had been approved
by shareholders of both companies and by almost
every regulatory body that had reviewed it. The 27

percent reduction in NU’s share price in 2001 was
painful, even though the Dow Jones and Standard
and Poors utility indices fell by more. We are determined to restore that lost value both through growing
the earnings of the company and by recovering fair
compensation for our shareholders from ConEd. I
expect a trial to begin in federal court later this year.
One of our greatest strengths is our focus — both
on strategy and on delivering results. We have adopted a balanced approach to growth, concentrating on
what we do well and not trying to be all things in all
markets. Our future lies principally in an 11 state
geographic region with specific businesses related to
the delivery and marketing of energy. Our vision— set
several years ago— is to be the leading energy delivery
and marketing company in the Northeast region. The
fact that we continue to deliver on that strategy today
is a testament to the strength of this vision and that of
our management and employee team.
As we move forward with our plans, you will see
the focus I mentioned across all of our businesses. To
better leverage our resources and streamline our operations, we made some significant organizational and
management changes this year. We created the Utility
Group, comprising our regulated operating companies. Working together, our regulated energy delivery
companies are now better positioned to capitalize on
each other’s best practices.
To meet the need for long haul energy delivery
infrastructure expansion, our Transmission Business
unit was created and launched one of the most ambitious expansion plans in our company’s history. We
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Our Regional

Focus

4

Business and Industry

Demographics

Energy Consumption

Connecticut

Gross State Product is $161.4 b;
finance, insurance and real estate
represent 29%; manufacturing is 16%

Population of 3.29 m is a .8% increase
from ‘95-2000

Residential consumption is nearly
30% of the state total; 28% from
transportation

Delaware

Gross State Product is $37.7 b;
finance, insurance and real estate represent 40%; manufacturing is 14%

Population of 784,000 is a 9.1%
increase from ’95-2000

Industrial consumption is nearly 40%
of state total; 25% from transportation

Maine

Gross State Product is $37.6 b;
finance, insurance and real estate
represent 19%; manufacturing is 15%

Population of 1.259 m is a 1.7%
increase from ’95-2000

Industrial consumption represents
49% of state total; 21% from transportation

Maryland

Gross State Product is $186.8 b;
finance, insurance and real estate
represent 21%; manufacturing is 8%

Population of 5.212 m is a 3.8%
increase from ’95-2000

Transportation consumption represents
29% of state total; 26% from residential

Massachusetts

Gross State Product is $279.4 b;
finance, insurance and real estate
represent 25%; manufacturing is 14%

Population of 6.206 m is a 2.4%
increase from ’95-2000

Transportation consumption represents
28% of state total; 25% from
industrial

New Hampshire

Gross State Product is $46.6 b;
finance, insurance and real estate
represent 24%; manufacturing is 20%

Population of 1.216 m is a 6.2 %
increase from ’95-2000

Transportation consumption represents
30% of state total; 29% from
industrial

New Jersey

Gross State Product is $357.3 b;
finance, insurance and real estate
represent 24%; manufacturing is 12%

Population of 8.191 m is a 2.8%
increase from ’95-2000

Transportation consumption represents
33% of state total; 67% from industrial,
commercial and residential

New York

Gross State Product is $823.5 b;
finance, insurance and real estate
represent 32%; manufacturing is 10%

Population of 18.234 m is a .5 %
increase from ’95-2000

Commercial consumption represents
28% of state total; 26% from residential;
industrial and transportation 23% each

Pennsylvania

Gross State Product is $412.2 b;
finance, insurance and real estate and
manufacturing each represent 19%

Population of 11.986 m is a .5%
decrease from ’95-2000

Industrial consumption represents
35% of state total; nearly 50% from
transportation and residential

Rhode Island

Gross State Product is $35 b; finance,
insurance and real estate and
manufacturing comprise 40%

Population of 994,000 is a .5%
increase from ’95-2000

Industrial consumption represents
30% of state total; 50% combined
from residential and transportation

Vermont

Gross State Product is $18.5 b;
manufacturing and finance, insurance
and real estate represent 34%

Population of 597,000 is a 2.4%
increase from ’95-2000

Transportation consumption represents
32% of state total; 50% combined
from residential and industrial

Return to Highlights

NU Front Mechanical Final

3/15/02 8:43 AM

Page 9

25% of all the energy
Connecticut
Delaware
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New York
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
Vermont

consumed in the U.S. is
consumed in these 11 states.

are seeking approvals for transmission projects totaling
nearly $1 billion. When approved, these projects will
alleviate serious transmission congestion problems in
the Northeast region, improve the regional energy
delivery infrastructure and promote access to less costly power for customers.
Our expansion plans also extend to our Yankee Gas
distribution system. As part of this organic growth,
more than 70 miles of new gas mains and services
were installed during the second half of 2001
throughout Connecticut at a cost of $23 million.
Another $170 million of projects are expected over
the next several years. Completion of this expansion
will extend greater fuel diversity to Connecticut consumers by offering another energy choice. Our proposed construction of a liquefied natural gas plant
would give us greater control over and diversity for
our gas supply, and deliver a more stable supply and
lower prices for customers. Our plans for expanding
the distribution system were approved in January
2002 by Connecticut regulators.
In our competitive businesses, Select Energy is
maturing as its revenue growth continues in spite of a
challenging and often chaotic market. The acquisition
of Niagara Mohawk Energy Marketing (now Select
Energy New York) bolsters our role in the region’s
energy marketing arena. In addition to Select Energy,
our competitive businesses will continue to grow in
the area of generation services. With further integration of profitable energy supply and services businesses
into our competitive affiliates group, our unregulated
rates of return will continue their year over year
growth. This year we expect these businesses to contribute one-half of our revenues. We will continue our
focus on responding to the market’s needs rather than

trying to force our products into the market. We are
not taking undue risks and we continue to realize success by staying within our regional approach.
I would like to take this opportunity to publicly
recognize four of our trustees who either retired or left
the board to focus on their other business obligations
in 2001. Bill Pape, Bill Conway, Emery Olcott and
John Turner served the shareholders of Northeast
Utilities with distinction during some very challenging times. Bill Pape was our most senior trustee with
more than 27 years of dedicated service. Their
thoughtful advice and wise counsel will be greatly
missed. We thank them and wish them all the best.
I am happy to report that Richard Booth, president of Hartford Steam Boiler Company and James F.
Cordes, recently retired executive vice president,
Natural Gas for The Coastal Corporation have joined
the board. I already have seen significant input from
these experienced executives and look forward to
working with Richard and Jim.
As we move through 2002, our talented senior
management team and employees will remain focused
on delivering results that you, our shareowners,
deserve. We believe the future has never been brighter.
We hope you will agree.
Sincerely,

Michael G. Morris
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
March 1, 2002
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A national leader in the utilities industry, Michael G. Morris is serving in
his fifth year as Northeast Utilities chairman, president and chief executive
officer and is focused on results-driven leadership. “Reliable and
affordable energy delivered through dependable systems is a national
priority. We are dedicated to finding and implementing trustworthy energy
policy solutions.”

Vision Without a

Strategy
is Daydreaming

Our Strategic Focus is our reliable compass as we
navigate an evolving energy landscape. As the leading
regional provider of energy products and services and
one of the top five energy marketers in the Northeast,
we are solidly positioned for an exciting year of
accomplishment in 2002. Net income is tracking as
expected, we are growing our competitive business
portfolio with the addition of companies, investing
funds in electric and natural gas delivery expansion
projects with reasonable rates of return, and have
achieved noteworthy financial stability and flexibility.
We are focused on doing what we do best.
These solid results will fuel growth across our 11
state territory, sharing the results with our sharehold-

6

ers by continuing to grow our dividend, and pursuing
strategic partnerships if our assets blend with other
major players in our region.
Our strategy remains deliberate and clear. Our
progress is directly linked to the value we place on
relationships—with our customers, our employees,
our shareholders and regulators. It is our belief that at
the heart of every decision there is a customer result
to be achieved.
We deeply value the public trust inherent in our
business and will honor that responsibility with our
hard work, our investments and our commitment to
customer satisfaction at every turn.
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Credit ratings are an element of NU’s financial scorecard. To vice chairman
and chief financial officer John H. Forsgren, they are the key indicator of
financial strength. “NU is nearly an A rated company, a remarkable accomplishment for us as credit rating agencies recognize our financially stable
and profitable status.” In his sixth year with NU, Forsgren views 2002 as a
dynamic year of investment, growth and increased earnings power.

Financial Strength and

Flexibility

Financial Performance is the key measure of NU’s
success in executing its strategy. An A rated company
is recognized world-wide as financially strong and
stable. NU received multiple rounds of upgrades in a
year that saw most utilities’ ratings trend lower. NU
system ratings are higher than they’ve ever been.
CL&P is already A rated and NU is close; a source of
pride for our employees and shareholders and a sign
of strength and stability to investors.
Our theme is reinvestment. It will be rapid, aggressive and consistent. Our near-term transition period
will be dynamic. We will invest as rapidly as we can in
the regulated companies to rebuild our equity investment in their operations. By doing so, we restore

earnings power in the regulated side of the company.
Our unregulated businesses will continue to be
our earnings growth engine and opportunistic investments will be the underpinnings of increased revenue
and earnings. Our goal is to recognize $3.8 billion in
sales revenue in 2002; the challenge in later years is
to achieve an average 15 percent rate of return.
Enhancing profitability in 2002 will include
expanding deeper into our 11 state target market as
we take a deliberate approach to conservative energy
marketing activities, acquiring generation as sound
opportunities present themselves and further
developing our energy service and energy marketing
businesses.
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Cheryl Grisé, president - Utility Group, is motivated daily to satisfy the
energy needs of almost 2 million traditional electric and natural gas
customers. “Anticipating customer needs and delivering exceptional
customer service will be the fullest measures of our success.” In her 21st
year with NU, Cheryl is leading NU’s regulated companies to reliability
improvements and increased operating efficiencies.

A Best of the Best

Mindset

Regulated Businesses are pursuing a united goal:
best of best performance. This dedicated effort
includes increasing reliability, prudent cost controls,
and expanding energy options and services for millions of residents in our far-reaching service territory.
The Utility Group companies’ focus on improved reliability, operational efficiencies and high quality customer
service will continue under the care and support of a new
leadership team charged with becoming a cost effective
customer focused energy delivery business. An atmosphere of continuous improvement will be our mainstay.
By leveraging our energy delivery expertise across
four regulated businesses we will achieve streamlined
operations maximizing our potential to provide

8

significant results to shareholders and customers alike.
While we pursue best of best operations, equally
important is continuing to achieve success on the
regulatory fronts. As we continue further into the
restructured marketplace, we find a robust market has
developed in Massachusetts while New Hampshire
has just started down the road of competitive choice
for all customers. In Connecticut, we are supporting
additional efforts to establish an energy pricing
structure that will stimulate competition and ensure
reliable energy supply.
With our inspired and future-oriented employees,
2002 accomplishments will demonstrate our zeal for
results and our dedication to our customers.
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Satisfied, repeat customers. Integrated energy solutions. Innovative products
in electric power and natural gas. A common denominator? Select Energy.
William Schivley, Select Energy president, characterizes the results. “As
the deregulated energy marketplace presents choices, we deliver bottomline results – competitively priced energy and customer relationships built
on trust.”

Business

Growth
by Leaps and Bounds

Unregulated businesses are tracking for unprecedented growth. Fulfilling plans to expand operations and
assets throughout the Northeast, NU’s energy marketing and services subsidiary Select Energy is the recognized market leader in wholesale energy, trading, retail
and behind-the-meter energy business in New England.
An integrated energy solutions company serving
wholesale and retail customers, Select Energy’s current
annual revenues total $3 billion. Their greatest asset—
knowledge.
With experience serving aggregated customer loads
and adeptness at customized pricing, Select Energy
moves freely in today’s robust marketplace. It benefits
its financially savvy energy customers by its in-house

strengths in trading operations, risk management and
physical commodities.
In 2001, Select Energy acquired Niagara Mohawk
Energy Marketing, Inc., marking a significant increase
in annual revenues and accelerating Select Energy’s
foothold in the New York market by one to two years.
In 2002, broader regional expansion and building
the energy trading business will deliver tremendous
growth to the NU system. Expansion to neighboring
power pools will occur as customers in deregulating
energy markets move to competitive supply.
With continued strategic integration of energy supply and comprehensive energy services, Select expertise
will deliver results—at the right time and price.
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Responsible decisions supported by knowledge and experience are the
underpinnings of success for the Transmission Business team and their
leader, vice president David H. Boguslawski. Their constructive efforts are
aimed at resolving a Connecticut and regional issue – access to reliable,
competitively priced power. “The time is now to secure our energy delivery
future and expand our energy options.”

The Case for Interstate

Transmission

Transmission of facts and awareness, in any form,
requires commitment. Whether ideas, information or
results, a strong sense of purpose is the beginning of
every success. At NU, the purpose is clear —deliver to
all of the region’s 5 million residential, commercial
and industrial customers, competitive energy supplies
on a reliable transmission grid.
Building off an existing, limited infrastructure
presently operating at full capacity, NU’s foresight in
its four transmission expansion projects clearly reflects
its responsibility to design and construct a transmission grid capable of transporting power generated as
far away as Quebec.
Two new 345 kV lines connecting southwest

10

Connecticut to the existing grid will ensure continuous reliable service to customers throughout the
region. Two cross-sound cable projects connecting
Connecticut and Long Island will expand regional
sharing and will ensure critical access to reliable energy supplies during periods of highest demand while
supporting a competitive market linking customers
with additional generation.
We plan to invest nearly a billion dollars in our
communities, our regional economy, our environment
and our future. With a continued focus on doing the
work we have done so well for so long, a profitable
result will be shared by all—a more reliable, efficient
and cost-effective energy system.
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NGS has seen dramatic growth, providing a preview of its future contributions. Expertise, disciplined strategic planning and customer focus are the
keys. Bruce Kenyon, president of Northeast Utilities’ Generation Group and
president and chief executive officer of Northeast Generation Services
Company (NGS) believes “Success in the competitive market is achieved
with our core competencies of capability and dependability.”

Aggressively Growing Generation

Services

Northeast Generation Services Company’s (NGS)
growth strategy is producing visible results. 2001 earnings of $4.6 million exceeded target and NGS achieved
a striking 47percent return on equity.
NGS has demonstrated its ability to win competitively bid contracts, grow its market presence and deliver quality generation services.
Delivering results on a range of service contracts,
from complete turnkey station management to
customized services tailored to meet specific customer
needs, NGS is leveraging its capabilities to capitalize on
the electric utility and industrial markets.
Locking in its position as an integrated services
provider to the electric generation market and to large

commercial and industrial customers, NGS has established itself in the market.
The successful acquisition of E.S. Boulos, one of the
largest union electrical contractors in New England,
brought substantial earnings to NGS and expanded its
service mix to include substation construction and
high-voltage electrical maintenance.
In 2002, strategic growth will continue with another
acquisition and potential additions to Northeast Generation Company’s asset portfolio. In 2003,NGS will broaden
its expertise with plans to acquire a mechanical company.
In the Generation Group, employees are producing
results in a challenging and highly competitive market.
Truly, the growth plan is in good hands.
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Northeast Utilities

Regulated Businesses
Business and Services
The Connecticut Light and Power Company

The state’s largest electric utility, CL&P provides 1.1 million customers
with safe, dependable, and reliable electricity. We are known by our theme
line, “CL&P: Delivering the energy of Connecticut.”

Public Service of New Hampshire

Provides safe, dependable and reliable electrical service to more than
430,000 homes and businesses. PSNH is the largest electric utility in New
Hampshire.

Western Massachusetts Electric Company

WMECO distributes safe, dependable and reliable energy to approximately
200,000 customers throughout Western Massachusetts.

Yankee Energy System, Inc.

Yankee Energy System, Inc., includes Yankee Gas Services Company, the
largest natural gas distribution company in Connecticut, and Yankee Energy
Financial company, which provides a full range of residential and commercial energy equipment financing options.

Competitive Businesses
Business and Services

12

Select Energy, Inc.

Select Energy, Inc., provides wholesale and retail electricity, natural gas and
other energy commodities. Select Energy Services, Inc., (formerly HEC)
provides behind-the-meter energy services including energy efficiency design
and engineering.

Northeast Generation Company

Generation asset ownership of approximately 1,300 megawatts.

Northeast Generation Services Company

NGS’s mission is to become the leading provider of integrated services to
the power generation and industrial markets of the Northeast. NGS
provides a complete suite of integrated services for power and industrial
plants. These include electrical and mechanical construction and
maintenance, electrical testing, engineering, laboratory and environmental
field services.

Transmission Business

To build a significant regional transmission company, we are expanding
existing cost-based assets and investing in unique, market based transmission projects at a cost of nearly $1 billion.
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Market

Outlook

Supplying electricity to customers in 149 cities and towns means that CL&P has
a critical role in the lives of millions of people every day. With a wide range of
programs, from energy conservation and ecconomic development to environmental education and community activities, the 2,300 employees of CL&P are
an important part of the growth and vitality of our state. CL&P is committed
to aniticipating and meeting the needs of our customers quickly.

In 2002, CL&P is reorganizing for enhanced performance in supporting
customers, the state’s economic growth, and strengthening business and
community vitality.

Serving 198 communities in the Granite State, PSNH provides electric service
to more than 70 percent of New Hampshire. With twelve generation facilities,
PSNH has an ample and diverse suppply of energy that is part of the continued economic growth in our state. PSNH provides a number of programs and
services to help our customers save money and energy every month. We are
part of the every day life of the cities and towns of our state.

Competitive rates, stable through 2003, are the foundation for continued
load growth. New energy efficiency programs will be offered in 2003.

WMECO distributes electricity to 59 communities and provides a unique
array of residential, municipal, commercial and industrial programs in areas
such as streetlighting and energy efficiency to assist customers in managing
their costs. WMECO prides itself on its partnerships with the communities
it serves through economic and community development assistance and
environmental stewardship.

WMECO is well-positioned for the coming year and will continue to lead
the way in supporting customers and strengthening the economic, business
and community climate of western Massachusetts and the Commonwealth.

Yankee Energy, through its principle operating subsidiary, Yankee Gas,
delivers natural gas and related products and services to 187,000 residential,
commercial and industrial customers in 69 cities and towns in Connecticut.
Yankee Financial offers a full range of energy equipment financing options
for residential and business customers, through its Hometown Energy Loan
Program and Energy Key commercial financing program.

In 2002, Yankee’s focus is on growth – expanding Connecticut’s energy
options through expansion into new and exciting customer markets and
ensuring service and reliability of gas supply to support economic development and fuel diversity in the state.

Markets

Outlook

Select is the region’s leading provider of integrated energy cost-saving
solutions to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and is a
licensed competitive energy retailer from Maine to Virginia. Power sourcing, trading and generation for ISO New England, New York ISO and PJM
Interconnection power pools. Designated energy services contractor for federal and state agencies throughout the US and overseas.

Expand retail and wholesale business as a result of recent New York
acquisition. Continued growth in revenues over the current level of $3
billion. Operational adjustments in place for profitability in 2002 as energy
markets continue to open for competition.

Facilities include 1,080-megawatt Northfield Mountain pumped storage
facility in Massachusetts and hydro and coal-fired facilities in Massachusetts
and Connecticut.

Acquisition plans underway for a variety of supply sources beyond New
England.

NGS competes successfully for a wide range of customers in the power
generation and industrial markets of the Northeast. With expansion into
new industries, it will continue building on its success.

NGS is very optimistic for 2002 and beyond. Our E.S. Boulos acquisition
in 2001 launched us successfully into the electrical services business.
Growth through additional acquisitions is a key ingredient to our business
plan. The markets for generation and transmission infrastructure upgrades
are forecasted to be strong. Our engineering, maintenance and construction
skills are well positioned to take advantage of these opportunities.

To address the anticipated needs for additional transmission capacity, NU is
working to strengthen the existing transmission system in the region. The
successful completion of these projects will deliver more energy choices,
improved reliability, and competitively priced energy for nearly 5 million
customers in the region.

The proposals are in various stages of development and will begin regulatory review in 2002. When approval is granted, NU is prepared to begin construction promptly.
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Financial and Statistical Information
$ 6,874

Moody’s

$ 5,877

BBB+

Baa1

BBB

Baa2

BBB-

Baa3

BB+

Ba1

BB

Ba2

BB-

Ba3

B+

B1

$ 0.0

$ 0.10

$ 4,471

$ 3,835

$ 0.25
$ 0.26

$ (1.12)

$ (1.01)

$ 3,768

$ 1.45

$ 0.40

$ 0.45

$ 1.97

S&P

97 98 99 00 01

Income per Common
Share Before
Extraordinary Loss

97 98 99 00 01

97 98 99 00 01

Dividends per Share

Revenues

(Dollars)

(Dollars in Thousands)

B

97 98 99 00 01

B2

Debt Ratings
S&P
Moody’s

(Dollars)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Company Report
Report of Independent Accountants
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization
Notes to Consolidated Statements of Capitalization
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition
Overview

Northeast Utilities and subsidiaries (NU or the company) reported 2001 earnings of $243.5 million, or $1.79 per share on a fully
diluted basis, compared with a loss of $28.6 million, or $0.20 per
share on a fully diluted basis in 2000 and earnings of $34.2 million, or $0.26 per share on a fully diluted basis in 1999. In 2001
and 2000, NU’s results were affected significantly by nonrecurring items.
In 2001, NU recorded an after-tax gain of $115.6 million, or
$0.85 per share, in connection with the sale of the Millstone
nuclear units to a subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc.,
Dominion Nuclear Connecticut, Inc. (DNCI). In 2001, NU also
recorded an after-tax nonrecurring loss of $22.4 million, or $0.17
per share, as a result of the adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended, and an
after-tax mark-to-market loss of $35.4 million, or $0.26 per share,
associated with the repurchase of NU shares in the first half of
2001. In 2000, NU recorded an extraordinary after-tax loss of
$233.9 million, or $1.65 per share, primarily associated with electric utility industry restructuring in New Hampshire. Excluding
the effect of these nonrecurring items, NU earned $185.7 million,
or $1.37 per share on a fully diluted basis, in 2001, compared
with $205.3 million, or $1.45 per share on a fully diluted basis, in
2000.
The decline in operating results at NU’s regulated companies
was due to a number of factors. Earnings at both The Connecticut
Light and Power Company (CL&P) and Western Massachusetts
Electric Company (WMECO) decreased primarily because the
sale of Millstone three months into 2001 removed a significant
source of earnings as compared with 2000. Earnings before preferred dividends at CL&P totaled $109.8 million in 2001, compared with $148.1 million in 2000 and a loss of $13.6 million in
1999. Earnings before preferred dividends at WMECO totaled
$15 million in 2001, compared with $35.3 million in 2000 and
$2.9 million in 1999. In addition to the sale of Millstone, CL&P’s
lower earnings also reflect a $21.1 million reduction in distribution
and transmission rates the Connecticut Department of Public
Utility Control (DPUC) imposed, which was effective on June
20, 2001.
Operating results at Public Service Company of New Hampshire (PSNH) and North Atlantic Energy Corporation (NAEC)
declined as a result of the implementation of industry restructuring and an 11 percent reduction in retail rates on May 1, 2001.
Earnings before preferred dividends at PSNH totaled $81.8 million in 2001, compared with a loss of $146.7 million in 2000 and
earnings of $84.2 million in 1999. The PSNH results included an
after-tax gain of $15.5 million associated with the Millstone sale
in 2001 and an after-tax $214.2 million extraordinary charge
associated with electric industry restructuring in 2000. Earnings
at NAEC totaled $4.2 million in 2001, compared with $32.5 mil-

lion in 2000 and $29.6 million in 1999. The lower results at
NAEC reflect a reduction in payments made by PSNH to NAEC
due to a buydown of the Seabrook Power Contracts with the proceeds from the sale of rate reduction bonds. Management expects
combined operating results at PSNH and NAEC to continue to
decline in 2002, reflecting the effects of a full year of electric utility industry restructuring.
Results at NU’s competitive energy subsidiaries also declined
in 2001. The competitive energy subsidiaries earned $5 million
on revenues of $3 billion in 2001, compared with a contribution
towards NU’s consolidated earnings of $13.6 million on revenues
of $1.9 billion in 2000 and a loss of $37 million on revenues of
$0.6 billion in 1999, excluding nonrecurring items. The decline
was primarily due to higher purchased power costs in the winter
of 2001 and lower than expected summer and fall customer loads
due to mild weather conditions.
Partially offsetting those declines in operating results was a significant increase in earnings at Yankee Energy System, Inc. (Yankee), which NU acquired on March 1, 2000. Yankee earned $25.8
million in 2001, compared with a loss of $0.7 million during the
10 months of 2000 it was part of the Northeast Utilities system
(NU system). The improved results were primarily due to the
inclusion of January 2001 and February 2001 results in 2001
earnings and the settlement of property tax litigation with the
City of Meriden, Connecticut.
NU’s earnings per share (EPS) benefited from the repurchase
of approximately 14.3 million NU common shares in 2001. NU’s
outstanding share count totaled 130.1 million shares on December 31, 2001, compared with 143.8 million shares outstanding on
December 31, 2000.
Future Outlook

NU estimates that its EPS will range between $1.40 per share and
$1.65 per share in 2002, excluding significant nonrecurring
items. NU expects that no retail rate cases will be filed in 2002.
The company therefore expects the financial performance of its
regulated businesses to be relatively stable and predictable in
2002, absent significant adverse events, such as a catastrophic
storm.
Also affecting the 2002 earnings range is the income associated
with NU’s qualified pension plan. In 2001, NU’s operating results
included pretax pension income of approximately $101 million
associated with this plan, excluding the effects of the Voluntary
Separation Program. NU currently expects pretax pension income
in 2002 to be reduced to approximately $73 million. Pension
income is annually adjusted during the second quarter based
upon updated actuarial evaluations, and the 2002 estimate may
be modified at that time.
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Additionally, a prime determinant of where NU performs
within the aforementioned 2002 earnings range is the performance of the company’s competitive energy subsidiaries. NU
expects revenues from its competitive energy subsidiaries to
exceed $3.8 billion in 2002. Much of that increase over 2001 is
the result of Select Energy, Inc.’s (Select Energy) acquisition of
Niagara Mohawk Energy Marketing, Inc. (NMEM) in late
November 2001 for approximately $31.7 million. That business
was subsequently renamed Select Energy New York, Inc. (SENY).
In 2001, Select Energy’s profits from its wholesale electric sales
were reduced by its obligation to serve 50 percent of CL&P’s standard offer service load at below market rates. Select Energy’s obligation to serve that load, continues through 2003. Select Energy’s
results would benefit from an increase in the pricing for CL&P’s
standard offer service load. A proceeding to begin this process was
filed with the DPUC in 2001, and management is pursuing raising those prices in 2002 and 2003. Select Energy’s profits also will
depend on its ability to renew and expand its wholesale business
in its 12-state Northeastern market area, as well as to continue to
grow its retail natural gas and electric businesses.
Consolidated Edison, Inc. Merger Litigation

On March 5, 2001, Consolidated Edison, Inc. (Con Edison)
advised NU that it was unwilling to close its merger with NU on
the terms set forth in the parties’ October 13, 1999, Agreement
and Plan of Merger, as amended and restated as of January 11,
2000, (Merger Agreement). That same day, NU notified Con
Edison that it would treat Con Edison’s refusal to proceed with
the merger as a repudiation and breach of the Merger Agreement,
and would file suit to obtain the benefits of the transaction for
NU shareholders. On March 6, 2001, Con Edison filed suit in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New
York (District Court) seeking a declaratory judgment that it had
been relieved of its obligation to proceed with the merger due to,
among other things, NU’s alleged breach of the Merger Agreement and the alleged occurrence of a “Material Adverse Change”
with respect to NU as that term is defined in the Merger Agreement. Con Edison also contends that it is entitled to recover damages from NU equal to the benefits it would have received if the
merger had been consummated together with the costs incurred
in preparing for and seeking approval of the merger. NU believes
that Con Edison’s claim for damages is without merit and, in any
event, that Con Edison’s proposed measure of damages is inappropriate. On March 12, 2001, NU filed suit against Con Edison in
the District Court seeking damages in excess of $1 billion arising
from Con Edison’s breach of the Merger Agreement.
On May 11, 2001, in accordance with a stipulation of the parties and order of the District Court, Con Edison filed an amended
complaint in which it added claims seeking damages for breach of
contract, fraudulent inducement and negligent misrepresentation.
On June 1, 2001, NU answered Con Edison’s amended complaint, denying all of its material allegations and asserting affirmative defenses, and asserted a counterclaim seeking damages in
excess of $1 billion against Con Edison for breach of the Merger
Agreement. NU subsequently dismissed its March 12, 2001,
complaint as duplicative of the June 1, 2001, counterclaim. On
June 8, 2001, Con Edison answered NU’s counterclaim, denying
its material allegations and asserting affirmative defenses.
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The parties substantially completed fact discovery in the litigation on December 21, 2001, and are currently conducting expert
discovery. The case schedule currently calls for the parties to be
prepared for trial on or after June 21, 2002; however no trial date
has yet been set by the court.
In addition, separate petitions were filed with the DPUC asking that its merger approval be rescinded or reversed. The DPUC
reopened its docket approving the merger and asked parties to
comment on the question of whether a date certain should be
imposed for consummation of the merger and whether that date
should be January 31, 2002. On January 30, 2002, the DPUC
issued a decision establishing January 31, 2002, as the deadline
for merger consummation. As a result, the DPUC’s prior approval
of the merger is no longer effective.
At this early stage of the litigation, management can predict
neither the outcome of this matter nor its ultimate effect on NU.
Liquidity

The year 2001 was marked by tremendous inflows of cash into
the NU system as a result of the securitization of stranded costs
and the sale of the Millstone units. During a seven-week period
between March 30, 2001, and May 17, 2001, NU’s subsidiaries’
liquidity benefited from the issuance of $2.1 billion in rate reduction bonds and certificates and the receipt of the $1.2 billion from
the sale of the Millstone units. The largest share of those proceeds
was used for the repayment of debt and preferred securities. As a
result, NU’s combined short-term and long-term debt other than
rate reduction bonds decreased to approximately $2.6 billion at
the end of 2001 from approximately $3.7 billion at the end of
2000. Capital lease obligations declined to $17.5 million at the
end of 2001 from $159.9 million at the end of 2000. In 2001,
CL&P also repaid $100 million of Monthly Income Preferred
Securities and reduced the amount outstanding under its accounts
receivable facility by $170 million. WMECO and PSNH repaid
all of their preferred stock, leaving CL&P’s $116.2 million of preferred stock not subject to mandatory redemption as the only preferred securities in the NU system.
Of the $2.1 billion of rate reduction bonds and certificates
issued by CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, approximately $1.2 billion was used to buyout or buydown high-cost, long-term purchased-power contracts. PSNH paid approximately another $50
million in December 2001 to buyout other purchased-power contracts and issued an equivalent amount of rate reduction bonds
in January 2002, to pay for those costs. PSNH continues to negotiate buyout or buydown arrangements with other plant operators
and may require additional funds if successfully renegotiated
agreements are approved by the New Hampshire Public Utilities
Commission (NHPUC) and result in upfront payments.
The remaining proceeds from the Millstone sale were used primarily to pay state and federal income taxes on the Millstone sale
and return equity capital to NU parent from the regulated electric
companies. Including both return of capital and common dividends, CL&P, PSNH, WMECO, and NAEC paid $60.1 million,
$287 million, $37 million, and $136 million, respectively, to NU
parent in 2001. Yankee paid no dividends to NU parent in 2001,
as NU parent used Yankee earnings and the receipt of approxi-
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mately $20 million from the sale of interests in certain electric
generating facilities owned by Yankee subsidiaries to repay debt
and fund Yankee’s expanded capital expenditure program.
NU parent used the dividends and return of capital primarily
to repurchase approximately 14.3 million NU common shares in
2001 of which approximately 10.3 million shares were repurchased in the second quarter of 2001. In July 2001, the NU
Board of Trustees authorized the repurchase of 15 million additional NU common shares by July 2003. Under this authorization, NU repurchased approximately 4 million shares by the end
of the year and has authorization to repurchase approximately
another 11 million shares.
In addition to repurchasing shares, NU spent another $31.7
million through Select Energy to acquire NMEM and through its
subsidiary Mode 1 Communications, Inc. (Mode 1) lent $15 million to NEON Communications, Inc. (NEON) in the form of
subordinated convertible notes. On December 6, 2001, NEON
announced that it had retained an unaffiliated financial institution to explore, among other options, debt restructuring. On January 22, 2002, NEON announced it was seeking a waiver from
one of its significant unaffiliated suppliers on a $7.3 million payment that had been due on December 31, 2001. If that supplier
accelerates payment on its $42 million note from NEON, the
action would trigger a cross-default on $180 million of senior
notes previously issued by NEON. If NEON were to restructure
its debt obligations or declare bankruptcy, NU management
believes that some or all of its debt and equity investment in
NEON would be impaired. In addition to the $15 million of subordinated convertible notes, Mode 1 owns approximately 4 million shares of NEON common stock. This equity investment had
a book value of $4.6 million, and a fair value of $11.2 million at
December 31, 2001. Subsequent to December 31, 2001, the market value of NEON stock has decreased significantly.
NU continues to pursue additional investments in both the
regulated and unregulated energy businesses in the Northeast
United States or other strategic initiatives from time to time and
will weigh making those investments against continued share
repurchases.
Aside from the issuance of rate reduction bonds and certificates, the NU system undertook a number of refinancings in
2001. On February 28, 2001, NU issued $263 million of variable-rate unsecured notes to repay an equal amount of bank debt
incurred a year earlier when NU acquired Yankee. On October
18, 2001, Northeast Generation Company (NGC) issued $440
million of amortizing senior secured debt. The $440 million
includes $120 million of bonds that mature on October 15, 2005,
at an interest rate of 4.998 percent, and $320 million of bonds
that mature on October 15, 2026, at an interest rate of 8.812 percent. Proceeds from the issuance plus cash on hand were used to
return $75 million to NU parent through a combination of capital and common dividends and to repay bank borrowings NGC
had incurred to acquire 1,289 megawatts (MW) of predominantly hydroelectric generation assets in early 2000. On December 19,
2001, PSNH refinanced $287.5 million of tax-exempt pollution
control revenue bonds (PCRBs) by issuing $109 million of
insured lower fixed-rate bonds and $178.5 million of insured variable-rate bonds. At current rates, that refinancing is expected to
save PSNH in excess of $10 million annually. Also, in late 2001,

Holyoke Water Power Company (HWP) repaid all of its public
debt in connection with the sale of its hydroelectric generation
assets and electric distribution system to the City of Holyoke for
$17.5 million.
Primarily as a result of the Millstone sale and the issuance of
rate reduction bonds and certificates, NU’s consolidated capitalization ratio was significantly stronger at the end of 2001 than it
was a year earlier. Including capital lease obligations, but excluding rate reduction bonds as these bonds are nonrecourse to the
NU system, NU’s capitalization ratio was 54.3 percent debt, 2.4
percent preferred securities and 43.3 percent common equity at
the end of 2001, compared with 60.4 percent debt, 4.4 percent
preferred securities and 35.2 percent common equity at the end of
2000. The improved capitalization ratio and lowered overall risk
profile resulted in a series of upgrades of the NU system securities
through 2001. At the end of 2001, senior debt ratings on NU
parent securities were Baa1 and BBB, A2 and A- for CL&P, A3
and BBB+ for WMECO, and A3, BBB+, and BBB for PSNH.
Overall, those ratings were the highest for NU securities in
decades and are expected to continue to enhance the NU system’s
access to low-cost capital.
NU’s net cash flows provided by operating activities declined
to $376.7 million in 2001, compared with $578.4 million in
2000 and $614.2 million in 1999. In 2001, cash flows provided
by operating activities, decreased primarily due to an increase in
receivables and unbilled revenues, net, associated with the sales
growth at NU’s competitive energy subsidiaries. The level of common dividends totaled $60.9 million in 2001, as compared to
$57.4 million in 2000 and $13.2 million in 1999. This increase
was a result of NU paying a $0.10 per share quarterly common
dividend in the first two quarters of 2001 and a $0.125 per share
quarterly common dividend in the last two quarters of 2001, as
compared to paying a $0.10 per share quarterly common dividend for all of 2000. The level of preferred dividends decreased to
$7.3 million in 2001, compared with $14.2 million in 2000 and
$22.8 million in 1999, reflecting NU’s ongoing effort to reduce
preferred stock outstanding. The NU system companies currently
forecast construction expenditures of up to $593 million for the
year 2002.
On September 28, 2001, NU paid a quarterly dividend of
$0.125 per share, an increase of 25 percent from a quarterly dividend of $0.10 per share declared since the fourth quarter of 1999.
Similar dividends were declared for payment on December 31,
2001, and were declared in January 2002 for payment on March
29, 2002. NU anticipates increasing its dividend by approximately 10 percent annually and eventually paying out approximately
50 percent of the aggregate earnings of its regulated companies in
the form of common dividends. Such a program will be dependent upon numerous factors, including NU’s ability to meet earnings targets and the judgment of its Board of Trustees at the time.
Over the coming years, management expects WMECO and
NAEC to pay out substantially all of their earnings as dividends to
the parent company. PSNH is expected to pay out most of its
earnings in the form of dividends to the parent company. There
may also be an additional dividend to NU near the end of 2002,
depending on the amount of cash received as a result of the sale of
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Seabrook. NGC also is expected to pay annual dividends to NU
as allowed by the bond covenants contained in NGC’s 2001 bond
indenture.
Yankee Gas Services Company (Yankee Gas) is expected to
reinvest its earnings in its distribution expansion program. NU is
expected to make an additional equity contribution to Yankee Gas
in 2002 to help fund its expansion program. CL&P’s dividend
policy will depend largely on its earnings and the timing and
scope of its expected increasing investment in its distribution and
transmission system. In 2002, both CL&P and WMECO may
make additional dividend payments to NU to help achieve their
target leverage ratios of approximately 55 percent, excluding rate
reduction bonds. As of December 31, 2001, CL&P’s capitalization included total debt of approximately 48 percent and
WMECO’s capitalization included total debt of approximately 52
percent, in each case excluding rate reduction bonds.
The NU system has $50.5 million of sinking fund obligations
due in 2002, primarily at NU parent and NGC. Management
expects to meet those obligations through operating cash flows.
Additionally, NU plans to refinance a $263 million variable-rate
note with a fixed-rate note in April 2002, to take advantage of
current interest rates. NU also expects to meet its capital expenditure and common dividend obligations in 2002 primarily
through operating cash flows, while maintaining excess funds for
further common share repurchases.
Beyond 2001, management expects that Yankee Gas will likely
need to issue additional long-term debt to fund its capital investment program, even without paying any common dividends to
NU. CL&P also may need to issue long-term debt if its currently
planned transmission construction program is approved by regulators. Current debt levels at WMECO are expected to remain
stable in future years and the level at PSNH may decline, contingent upon the results of the sale of NAEC’s share of Seabrook.
The NU system could need additional sources of capital to fund
expansion of its competitive energy subsidiaries in future years,
but management cannot currently estimate that amount.
Competitive Energy Subsidiaries

NU’s competitive energy subsidiaries grew significantly in 2001
with revenues of $3 billion, compared with revenues of $1.9 billion in 2000. Earnings, however, declined to $5 million before the
cumulative effect of an accounting change in 2001, as compared
to a contribution toward NU’s consolidated earnings of $13.6
million before an extraordinary charge in 2000. NU’s competitive
energy subsidiaries own and manage 1,436 MW of generation
capacity, including 1,289 MW at NGC and 147 MW at HWP.
These businesses also include wholesale and retail energy marketing organizations and an expanding trading business. The energy
marketing organizations also buy and sell natural gas and other
fuels. The competitive energy subsidiaries also include Select
Energy Services, Inc. (SES) (formerly HEC Inc.), which performs
energy management services for large industrial, commercial and
institutional facilities, including the United States Department of
Defense, and Northeast Generation Services Company (NGS),
which operates and maintains NGC’s and HWP’s generation
assets and provides third-party contracting services for power
plants and large industrial facilities.
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NU operates its competitive energy subsidiaries as a combined
entity. However, in connection with the initial financing of NGC
and its issuance of nonrecourse debt, Select Energy has an abovemarket contract to purchase energy and related products from
NGC. Select Energy’s performance under that contract is guaranteed by NU. Select Energy has another contract to acquire power
from HWP’s 147 megawatt coal-fired Mount Tom generating
unit in Holyoke, Massachusetts. Primarily as a result of the favorable terms to NGC and HWP in those contracts, NGC earned
$42.3 million on revenues of $129.7 million in 2001 and HWP
earned $4.4 million on revenues of $55.2 million in 2001. Both
of NU’s primary energy services businesses also were profitable in
2001 with NGS earning $4.6 million on revenues of $112 million and SES earning $2.4 million on revenues of $102 million.
Select Energy’s marketing and trading business combines the output and capacity from NGC and HWP with other generation and
provides wholesale and retail electric service throughout the
Northeast United States. In addition to electricity, Select Energy
sells natural gas and other fuels on a wholesale and retail basis.
NU’s investment in Select Energy grew in 2001 due in large
part to the acquisition of NMEM, and the need to post additional
working capital as a result of a significantly increased level of business. NU invested $109.4 million of equity in Select Energy in
2001 and Select Energy had borrowings from the parent company
of $162 million and $114.1 million at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively. This investment was partially offset by the
return of $75 million to NU parent through a combination of
capital and common dividends by NGC in October 2001.
One of management’s primary goals in 2002 is to improve the
results of Select Energy’s energy marketing and trading businesses.
To reduce risk, Select Energy has already procured almost 100
percent of the projected on-peak and the vast majority of the offpeak electricity requirements needed to serve the CL&P standard
offer service load. In addition, management continues to work
with state regulators to increase CL&P’s standard offer service
price to make it more competitive with alternative energy suppliers. Select Energy management also continues to work with third
parties to arrange new profitable energy contracts to replace a
number of wholesale contracts that are in the process of expiring.
Management also expects the operations of SENY to significantly
increase its business in New York and to generate positive net
income in 2002.
NU provides credit assurance in the form of guarantees and
letters of credit for the financial performance obligations of certain of its competitive energy subsidiaries. NU currently has
authorization from the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) to provide up to $500 million of guarantees, and has
applied for authority to increase this amount to $750 million. As
of December 31, 2001, NU had provided approximately $268.2
million and $45 million of such guarantees and letters of credit,
respectively. In addition, NU’s “aggregate investment” in Select
Energy and its other energy service companies (but not including
NGC, HWP or certain subsidiaries of SES) (which is inclusive of
most of such credit assurances) is limited by SEC rule to 15 percent of NU’s most recent quarterly consolidated capitalization. In
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light of the increasing size of the energy marketing and trading
businesses, NU has applied to the SEC for authority to exempt
Select Energy and SENY from this limitation.
Competitive Energy Subsidiaries’ Market and Other Risks

NU’s competitive energy subsidiaries, as major providers of electricity and natural gas, are exposed to certain market risks inherent in their business activities. The competitive energy subsidiaries
enter into contracts of varying lengths of time to buy and sell
energy commodities, primarily electricity, natural gas and oil.
Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact the companies’ financial statements due to adverse changes in commodity
market prices.
The competitive energy subsidiaries manage their portfolio of
contracts and assets to maximize value and minimize associated
risks. The lengths of contracts to buy and sell energy vary in duration from daily/hourly to several years. At any point in time, the
portfolio may be long (purchases exceed sales) or short (sales
exceed purchases). Portfolio and risk management disciplines are
used to manage exposures to market risks. Policies and procedures
have been established to manage these risks. At market spot prices
in effect at December 31, 2001, the portfolio had a positive markto-market position. There is significant volatility in the energy
commodities market, and for certain of the energy products and
contracts there has been limited liquidity. The position increased
in value due to the decline in energy prices in the region and new
transactions entered into during 2001.
Select Energy also engages in the trading of commodity derivatives, which are accounted for using the mark-to-market method
under Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 98-10, “Accounting
for Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities.” All other
nontrading transactions are recognized when settled.
All trading positions are marked-to-market daily at the end of
each trading day. All NYMEX futures and options are marked to
closing exchange prices. Over-the-counter forwards and options
are marked to the mid-point of bid and ask quotes. In most cases
there are multiple sources of over-the-counter and broker quotes.
Options, for which specific quotes are not available, are markedto-market using a forward volatility curve derived from other
options for which quotes are available.
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2001, the sources
of the fair value of these trading activities and the change in fair
value of these trading activities are as follows:
(Millions of Dollars)

Sources of Fair Value

Fair Value of Contracts at December 31, 2001
Maturity
Maturity Maturity in
Less than
of One to
Excess of
Total
One Year
Four Years
Four Years
Fair Value

Prices actively quoted
$1.0
Prices provided by
external sources
6.5
Prices based on model or
other valuation method —
Totals
$7.5

$ 0.2

$ —

$ 1.2

15.9

20.8

43.2

—
$16.1

—
$20.8

—
$44.4

(Millions of Dollars)

Fair value at beginning of period
(January 1, 2001)
Contracts realized or otherwise
settled during the period
Fair value of new contracts entered
into during the period
Changes in fair value of contracts
that existed at the beginning of
the period
Fair value at end of period
(December 31, 2001)

Total Fair Value

$13.8
(7.9)
17.7

20.8
$44.4

For further information see Note 1J, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Accounting for Competitive Energy
Contracts,” Note 9, “Market Risk and Risk Management Instruments,” and Note 12, “Other Comprehensive Income,” to the
consolidated financial statements.
Business Development and Capital Expenditures

In 2001, NU system companies announced a number of initiatives to significantly increase their investment in regulated electric
transmission and natural gas distribution facilities, particularly in
Connecticut. CL&P announced that it planned to construct two
new 345,000 volt transmission line facilities totaling approximately 85 miles into Norwalk, Connecticut at a combined cost of
approximately $520 million. An application to construct one of
the facilities, an approximately 20 mile facility from Bethel, Connecticut to Norwalk, Connecticut, was filed in October 2001
with the Connecticut Siting Council. A decision is expected by
the fall of 2002. The application related to a second facility from
Middletown, Connecticut to Norwalk, Connecticut will be filed
with the Connecticut Siting Council later in 2002. CL&P also
has proposed replacing the existing 138,000 volt transmission line
beneath Long Island Sound between Norwalk, Connecticut and
Northport - Long Island, New York. CL&P, which owns an equal
share of the existing line with the Long Island Power Authority,
would bear approximately half of the cost of the $80 million project. That project would require Connecticut, New York and federal regulatory approvals. This application was filed with the Connecticut Siting Council in February 2002. If approved, these three
projects would increase CL&P’s capital expenditures. CL&P’s
capital investments in electric utility plant totaled $237.4 million
in 2001 and $208.2 million in 2000, well above the $132.2 million level of 1998, primarily as a result of increased spending on
CL&P’s distribution system. CL&P’s capital expenditures are
expected to total $244 million in 2002 and higher in 2003
through 2005, if the transmission projects are approved.
In addition to the three CL&P transmission projects noted
above, the NU system announced plans for a fourth project
involving construction of a new undersea direct-current line
between Norwalk, Connecticut and western Long Island that is
projected to be in service by no later than 2005. The cost of that
line, which will require several regulatory approvals, depends on a
number of factors, including its size and route. Management
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expects the line to be built and owned by a new NU transmission
subsidiary that will secure its own external financing and receive
an equity contribution from NU.
Yankee Gas received approval for a significant expansion of its
distribution system as it has a relatively low penetration rate for
gas service in its service territory. To begin increasing that penetration rate, Yankee Gas commenced work in 2001 on 12 projects
expected to cost $23 million in total. As a result, Yankee Gas’ capital expenditures were $47.8 million in 2001, compared with
$21.6 million in 2000. Yankee Gas has proposed system expansion projects totaling $190 million through 2005, including the
12 projects announced in 2001. Yankee Gas also is considering
construction of a liquefied natural gas storage terminal in Waterbury, Connecticut that could cost in excess of $50 million. Yankee
Gas may issue up to $100 million of long-term debt in 2002 to
finance its capital needs and may require additional debt issuances
in later years, depending on the extent of its capital program.
Capital investments in electric utility plant at PSNH and
WMECO totaled $92.6 million and $30.9 million, respectively,
in 2001, as compared to $69.5 million and $27.3 million, respectively, in 2000. The company anticipates no material increase in
capital expenditures at those subsidiaries in the next several years.
Capital expenditures at NU’s competitive energy subsidiaries
are expected to be modest over the next several years. The most
significant ongoing project is a repowering of six hydroelectric
generation units at the Cabot Facility in Turners Falls, Massachusetts. That project began in 2001 and is expected to cost approximately $7 million per year and continue through 2003.
NU continues to search for investment opportunities in competitive energy businesses in the Northeast United States. Over
the past three years, NU acquired Denron, a heating, ventilating
and air conditioning contractor based in New Hampshire; E.S.
Boulos Company (Boulos), a high-voltage electrical contractor
based in Maine, and; NMEM, an energy marketing company
based in New York. NU also invested $10 million in Acumentrics,
a Massachusetts firm that manufactures power quality and uninterruptible power quality components. The NMEM acquisition
at approximately $31.7 million, was the largest investment of the
four aforementioned investments. With approximately $570 million in revenues in 2001, this acquisition is expected to increase
Select Energy’s consolidated revenues by approximately 25 percent in 2002 and significantly increase Select Energy’s activities in
the New York market.
Restructuring and Rate Matters

Connecticut - CL&P: Industry restructuring for CL&P was essentially completed in 2000. In June 2001, the DPUC concluded an
investigation of potential overearnings by CL&P and ordered a
$21.1 million reduction in CL&P’s electric transmission and distribution rates and an equal increase in CL&P’s Generation Services Charge. The DPUC also implemented an earnings sharing
mechanism under which earnings in excess of a 10.3 percent
return on equity will be shared equally by shareholders and
ratepayers. On September 28, 2001, the DPUC ordered a $21.3
million annual reduction in CL&P’s System Benefits Charge as a
result of a sharp reduction in decommissioning collections and an
equal increase in the Competitive Transition Assessment, effective
January 1, 2002. Also, on July 26, 2001, the DPUC authorized
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CL&P to assess a charge of approximately $0.002 per kilowatthour (kWh) from August 2001 through December 2003 to collect approximately $98.5 million of deferred fuel costs. The net
result of these decisions was a reduction in CL&P’s pretax earnings of $21.1 million beginning June 20, 2001, an acceleration of
CL&P’s recovery of stranded costs in 2002 and 2003, and further
enhancement of CL&P’s cash flows.
On September 27, 2001, CL&P filed its application with the
DPUC for approval of the disposition of the proceeds from the
sale of the Millstone units to DNCI. This application described
and requested DPUC approval for CL&P’s treatment of its share
of the proceeds from the sale. A decision from the DPUC is
expected in the first half of 2002.
Since retail competition began in Connecticut in 2000, an
extremely small number of CL&P customers have opted to
choose their retail supplier. As of December 31, 2001, virtually all
of CL&P’s customers were procuring their electricity through
CL&P’s standard offer service. Through December 2003, 50 percent of CL&P’s standard offer service requirements will be purchased from Select Energy with the remaining 50 percent being
purchased from two unaffiliated companies. On November 18,
2001, at the request of one of the unaffiliated companies, CL&P
filed a request with the DPUC to raise the standard offer service
rate from an average of $0.0495 per kWh to $0.0595 per kWh to
help promote competition in advance of the January 1, 2004, termination of the standard offer service period and to provide financial relief to the standard offer suppliers. In December 2001, the
DPUC rejected CL&P’s request, but opened two new dockets to
examine the absence of effective retail electric competition in
Connecticut and the financial condition of the suppliers. The
dockets will include the gathering of information regarding the
viability of the standard offer service contracts, their reliability
and whether the standard offer service contracts should be linked
to market conditions. The DPUC held hearings in February
2002. A decision in this docket which could lead to the re-opening of CL&P’s standard offer docket to consider these issues is
expected to be issued in the first half of 2002.
Connecticut - Yankee Gas: On July 24, 2001, Yankee Gas filed
a rate application with the DPUC requesting a 7.64 percent or
$29.2 million increase in rates to fund system reliability projects
and a proposed expansion of its distribution system. On January
30, 2002, the DPUC issued a final decision which ordered a $4
million rate decrease effective March 1, 2002. This rate decrease
was, in part, based upon adjustments that Yankee Gas had agreed
to during the proceedings. The final decision however, approved
partially or fully many of the proposals made by Yankee Gas in its
filing. The decision endorses Yankee Gas’ distribution system
expansion plan, subject to annual reviews and approves, with
some conditions, its ratemaking recovery mechanism (Infrastructure Expansion Rate Mechanism). The final decision also authorizes an 11 percent return on equity for Yankee Gas and a sharing
formula for earnings above that level from 2002 through 2005.
Subsequent to the final decision, the effective date of the rate
decrease was delayed until April 1, 2002.
New Hampshire: On May 1, 2001, PSNH implemented
industry restructuring allowing its customers to begin choosing
their electric suppliers (competition day). They also received an
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overall reduction of 10 percent, in addition to the 5 percent
reduction they received on October 1, 2000.
On May 22, 2001, the Governor of New Hampshire signed a
bill modifying the state’s 1996 and 2000 electric utility industry
restructuring laws. The revisions delay the sale of PSNH’s fossil
and hydroelectric generation assets to no sooner than 33 months
after restructuring takes effect, or February 1, 2004. The revisions
also fixed the charges retail customers will pay PSNH for electric
supply, or transition service.
PSNH and NAEC have entered into two contracts where
PSNH is obligated to purchase NAEC’s 35.98 percent ownership
of the capacity and output of Seabrook. The 2001 amended
restructuring bill requires the NHPUC to complete the sale of
NAEC’s share of Seabrook in an expeditious manner. In late
2001, the NHPUC and the DPUC named J. P. Morgan as the
selling agent for all owners seeking to sell their Seabrook shares.
Those owners, which include CL&P with its 4.06 percent share,
collectively own approximately 88 percent of Seabrook. J. P. Morgan expects to consummate the sale in late 2002. NAEC’s proceeds will be used to repay all $90 million of NAEC’s outstanding
debt and return all NAEC’s equity, which totaled $35 million as
of December 31, 2001, to NU. Following the sale of NAEC’s
share of Seabrook, the Seabrook Power Contracts will be terminated. PSNH will use these proceeds to more quickly amortize
stranded costs.
On October 10, 2000, NU reached an agreement with an
unaffiliated joint owner of Seabrook under which that joint owner
would include its aggregate 15 percent ownership share of
Seabrook in the upcoming sale. Under the terms of the agreement, in the event that the sale yields proceeds for that joint
owner of more than $87.2 million, NU and that joint owner
would share the excess proceeds. Should those sales proceeds be
less than $87.2 million, NU would make up the difference below
that amount up to a maximum of $17.4 million. The agreement
also limits any top-off amount required to be funded by that joint
owner for decommissioning as part of the sale process at the
amount required by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC)
regulations.
Massachusetts: Unlike Connecticut, Massachusetts has experienced a continued expansion in the number of customers securing
their electric supply through competitive suppliers. In January
2001, WMECO instituted approximately a 17 percent overall
rate increase for its customers taking standard offer service. The
increase reflected a sharp increase, from approximately $0.045 per
kWh to approximately $0.073 per kWh, in prices paid to thirdparty suppliers during 2001. In December 2001, however, the
Massachusetts Department of Telecommunications and Energy
approved approximately a 14 percent reduction in WMECO’s
overall rates for standard offer service customers, primarily reflecting a reduction in WMECO’s standard offer service supply costs
in 2002 to approximately $0.048 per kWh. The significant reduction in supply costs in 2002 will result in a material reduction in
WMECO’s operating revenues and purchased power costs in
2002, but should not have a significant impact on financial performance since electric supply costs are passed through to customers.

For further information regarding commitments and contingencies related to restructuring, see Note 7A, “Commitments and
Contingencies - Restructuring,” to the consolidated financial
statements.
Regional Transmission Organization

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) has
required all transmission owning utilities to voluntarily start
forming regional transmission organizations (RTO) or to state
why this process has not begun. In July 2001, the FERC stated
that the three existing Northeastern Independent System Operators (ISO) (PJM, New York and New England) should work
together to form one RTO. The FERC initiated a mediation
effort between all interested parties to begin the process of forming such an entity.
NU has been discussing with the other transmission owners in
the three pool area the potential to form an Independent Transmission Company (ITC). The ITC would be a for-profit entity
and would perform certain transmission functions required by the
FERC including tariff control, system planning and system operations. The remaining functions required by the FERC would be
performed by the ISO and deal with the energy market and shortterm reliability. Together, the ITC and ISO form the FERC
desired RTO.
In January 2002, the New York and New England ISOs
announced their intention to form an RTO. NU is working with
the other transmission owners in these two power pools to create
an ITC. The agreements needed to create the ITC and to define
the working relationships among the ISO, the ITC and the transmission owners should be created in 2002 and will allow the ITC
to begin operation shortly thereafter. The ITC and/or ISO will
have the responsibility to collect the revenue requirements of each
transmission owning entity from the market place through FERC
approved tariffs. The creation of the ITC and/or RTO will require
a FERC rate case and the impact on NU’s return on equity as a
result of this rate case cannot be estimated at this time.
Nuclear Plant Performance and Other Matters

Seabrook: Seabrook operated at a capacity factor of 85.9 percent
in 2001. After returning from a scheduled refueling outage in January 2001, Seabrook operated at a capacity factor of 93.4 percent.
Seabrook is scheduled to undergo a refueling outage in the spring
of 2002. The NU system companies own 40.04 percent of
Seabrook.
Yankee Companies: In August 2001, Vermont Yankee Nuclear
Power Corporation announced it would sell the unit to an unaffiliated company for $180 million, including $145 million for the
plant and materials and supplies and $35 million for the nuclear
fuel. NU subsidiaries own 16 percent of the unit, and under the
terms of the sale, will continue to buy 16 percent of the plant’s
output through March 2012 at a range of fixed prices. The sale
requires several regulatory approvals and is scheduled to close during the first half of 2002.
Millstone: On March 31, 2001, CL&P and WMECO consummated the sale of Millstone 1 and 2 to DNCI. Additionally,
CL&P, PSNH and WMECO sold their ownership interests in
Millstone 3 to DNCI. On October 5, 2001, NU issued a report,
following an extensive search, concerning two missing fuel pins at
the retired Millstone 1 nuclear unit, which was sold to DNCI on
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March 31, 2001. As of December 31, 2001, costs related to this
search totaled $7.1 million. The report concluded that the pins
are currently located in one of four facilities licensed to store low
or high-level nuclear waste and that they are not a threat to public
health and safety. A follow-up review by the NRC commenced
shortly after the report was filed and resulted in a NRC sponsored
public meeting on January 15, 2002. In February 2002, the NRC
issued a written inspection report which concluded that NU’s
investigation was thorough and complete, and that its conclusions
were reasonable and supportable.
Nuclear Decommissioning

In connection with the aforementioned sale of the Millstone
units, DNCI has agreed to assume responsibility for decommissioning those units.
For further information regarding nuclear decommissioning,
see Note 8, “Nuclear Decommissioning and Plant Closure
Costs,” to the consolidated financial statements.
Spent Nuclear Fuel Disposal Costs

The United States Department of Energy (DOE) originally was
scheduled to begin accepting delivery of spent nuclear fuel on January 31, 1998. However, delays in confirming the suitability of a
permanent storage site continually have postponed plans for the
DOE’s long-term storage and disposal site. Extended delays or a
default by the DOE could lead to consideration of costly alternatives. NU has the primary responsibility for the interim storage of
its spent nuclear fuel prior to divestiture of its remaining operating nuclear units, Seabrook and Vermont Yankee, as well as the
three nuclear units currently undergoing decommissioning, Connecticut Yankee, Maine Yankee and Yankee Rowe.
For further information regarding spent nuclear fuel disposal
costs, see Note 7C, “Commitments and Contingencies – Spent
Nuclear Fuel Disposal Costs,” to the consolidated financial statements.
Other Matters

Critical Accounting Policies: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates,
assumptions and at times difficult, subjective or complex judgments. Accounting policies related to the recoverability of certain
regulatory assets, the performance of impairment assessments of
recorded goodwill and other long-lived assets, mark-to-market
accounting and the related treatment of derivative instruments
and certain trading and hedging activities, and the assumptions
used in developing the pension and postretirement benefit obligations are the accounting principles that management believes are
critical and could have a significant impact on NU’s consolidated
financial statements.
Regulatory Assets: The accounting policies of the NU system’s
regulated operating companies historically reflect the effects of the
rate-making process in accordance with SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” Through their
cost-of-service rate regulated transmission and distribution businesses, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO are currently recovering
their investments in long-lived assets, including regulatory assets,
and management believes that the application of SFAS No. 71 to
that portion of their businesses continues to be appropriate. Man-
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agement must reaffirm this conclusion at each balance sheet date.
If, as a result of a change in circumstances, it is determined that
any portion of these investments is no longer recoverable under
SFAS No. 71, that portion would be written off. Such a write-off
could have a material impact on NU’s consolidated financial statements. Management currently believes that all long-lived assets,
including regulatory assets, are recoverable.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Effective January 1,
2002, under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” NU is required to perform at least an annual assessment
for impairment of goodwill by applying a fair value-based test.
Management is in the process of the first assessment of impairment of goodwill and expects to complete this assessment by the
June 30, 2002, deadline imposed by SFAS No. 142. Upon adoption of the impairment testing rules under SFAS No. 142, there
may be a cumulative effect of an accounting change which management has not evaluated at this time.
Mark-To-Market Accounting: At each balance sheet date, NU’s
energy trading positions are marked-to-market using closing
exchange prices or quotes from external sources. Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact NU’s financial statements
due to adverse changes in commodity market prices which could
affect the realizability of the positive mark-to-market position of
$44.4 million at December 31, 2001.
Additionally, the mark-to-market position for certain effective
hedging activities is currently included in other comprehensive
income. If it is determined that these hedging activities are no
longer effective, as defined in SFAS No. 133, this mark-to-market
position would be included currently in earnings. This mark-tomarket position was a negative $36.9 million at December 31,
2001, net of tax (decrease to equity).
Pension and Postretirement Benefit Obligations: The NU system companies participate in a uniform noncontributory defined
benefit retirement plan covering substantially all regular NU system employees and also provide certain health care benefits, primarily medical and dental, and life insurance benefits through a
benefit plan to retired employees. For each of these plans, the
development of the benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets,
funded status and net periodic benefit credit or cost is based on
several significant assumptions. These assumptions primarily
relate to the application of a discount rate, expected long-term
rate of return and other trend rates. If these assumptions were
changed, the resultant change in benefit obligations, fair values of
plan assets, funded status and net periodic benefit credits or costs
could have a material impact on NU’s consolidated financial statements.
For further information regarding these types of activities, see
Note 1G, “Regulatory Accounting and Assets,” Note 1C, “New
Accounting Standards,” Note 9, “Market Risk and Risk Management Instruments,” and Note 4, “Employee Benefits,” to the consolidated financial statements.
Environmental Matters: The NU system is subject to environmental laws and regulations structured to mitigate or remove the
effect of past operations and to improve or maintain the quality of
the environment. For further information regarding environmental matters, see Note 7B, “Commitments and Contingencies Environmental Matters,” to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Commitments and Contingencies: For further information regarding other commitments and contingencies, see Note 7,
“Commitments and Contingencies,” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments:
Aggregated information regarding the NU system’s contractual
obligations and commercial commitments as of December 31,
2001, is summarized as follows:

2002
2003
$ 290.5 $
— $
50.5
318.6
3.1
3.1
23.7
18.4
442.1
450.8
2,416.2
836.2
$ 3,226.1 $ 1,627.1 $

(Millions of Dollars)

Notes payable to banks
Long-term debt
Capital leases
Operating leases
Long-term contractual obligations
Select Energy purchase agreements
Totals

For further information regarding NU’s contractual obligations and commercial commitments, see the Consolidated Statements of Capitalization and related footnotes, and Note 2,
“Short-Term Debt,” Note 3, “Leases,” and Note 7E, “Long-Term
Contractual Arrangements,” to the consolidated financial statements.
Forward Looking Statements: This discussion and analysis
includes forward looking statements, which are statements of
future expectations and not facts including, but not limited to,
statements regarding future earnings, refinancings, the use of pro-

2004
— $
58.5
3.0
15.5
459.3
145.9
682.2 $

2005
— $
86.6
2.8
13.3
462.2
95.7
660.6 $

2006
Totals
— $ 290.5
24.3
538.5
2.7
14.7
11.1
82.0
411.9
2,226.3
34.8
3,528.8
484.8 $ 6,680.8

ceeds from restructuring, and the recovery of operating costs.
Words such as estimates, expects, anticipates, intends, plans, and
similar expressions identify forward looking statements. Actual
results or outcomes could differ materially as a result of further
actions by state and federal regulatory bodies, competition and
industry restructuring, changes in economic conditions, changes
in historical weather patterns, changes in laws, developments in
legal or public policy doctrines, technological developments, and
other presently unknown or unforeseen factors.

Results of Operations

The components of significant income statement variances for the past two years are provided in the table below.
Income Statement Variances
(Millions of Dollars)

Operating Revenues

$

2001 over/(under) 2000

2000

Amount

Amount

997

Percent

17%

$ 1,405

over/(under)

1999
Percent

31%

Operating Expenses:
Fuel, purchased and net interchange power
Other operation
Maintenance
Depreciation
Amortization of regulatory assets, net
Taxes other than income taxes
Gain on sale of utility plant

1,237
(93)
3
(39)
706
(19)
(642)

37
(11)
1
(16)
(a)
(8)
(100)

1,406
11
(85)
(62)
(320)
(23)
309

74
1
(25)
(21)
(54)
(9)
100

Total operating expenses

1,153

22

1,236

31

Operating Income
Other income (loss), net
Interest expense, net
Income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Preferred dividends of subsidiaries
Income before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of
accounting change
Extraordinary loss, net of tax benefit
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit
Net income/(loss)

$

(156)
202
(19)

(22)
(a)
(7)

169
92
36

32
87
14

65
12
(7)

17
7
(47)

225
63
(9)

(a)
64
(38)

60
234
(22)

30
100
100

171
(234)
—

(a)
100
—

(63)

(a)

272

(a)

$

(a) Percent greater than 100.
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Operating Revenues

Total revenues increased by $997 million or 17 percent in the year
2001, compared with the year 2000, primarily due to higher revenues from the competitive energy subsidiaries ($1,069 million
which reflects eliminations of sales to other NU affiliates), higher
revenues from Yankee Gas ($127 million) and higher regulated
retail electric revenues ($33 million), partially offset by lower
wholesale regulated revenues ($190 million) and lower transmission revenues ($26 million). The competitive energy subsidiaries’
increase is primarily due to higher revenues from Select Energy as
a result of new contracts for energy services. The Yankee Gas
increase is primarily due to a full year of revenue in 2001 versus
ten months post merger in 2000. The regulated retail increase is
primarily due to a 1.7 percent increase in sales ($41 million), the
increase in WMECO’s standard offer service rate ($59 million)
and the recovery of previously deferred fuel costs for CL&P ($19
million), partially offset by the 5 and 11 percent rate decreases for
PSNH that were effective October 1, 2000 and May 1, 2001,
respectively ($89 million). Wholesale revenues were lower primarily due to the sale of Millstone at the end of the first quarter of
2001.
Total revenues increased by $1,405 million or 31 percent in
2000, primarily due to higher revenues from the competitive
energy subsidiaries ($1,246 million of which $669 million represents sales to other NU affiliates which are eliminated in consolidation), the acquisition of Yankee ($262 million) and higher regulated wholesale revenues ($727 million of which $281 million
represents sales to other NU affiliates which are eliminated in consolidation), partially offset by lower regulated retail revenues ($26
million). The competitive energy subsidiaries’ increase is primarily
due to higher revenues from Select Energy as a result of new contracts for energy sales and services. The regulated wholesale revenue increase is primarily due to higher PSNH energy sales and
higher CL&P and WMECO revenue from the sale of the output
from Millstone 2 and 3. The regulated retail decrease is primarily
due to retail rate reductions for CL&P and PSNH ($108 and $8
million, respectively), partially offset by the impact of Millstone 2
being returned to CL&P’s rate base ($33 million), higher retail
sales ($18 million), higher fuel revenues for PSNH ($15 million),
and higher retail revenue attributed to lower price discounts in
2000 and changing customer mix ($24 million). Regulated retail
kWh sales increased by 0.8 percent in 2000.
Fuel, Purchased and Net Interchange Power

Fuel, purchased and net interchange power expense increased in
2001, primarily due to higher purchased energy and capacity costs
as a result of higher sales for Select Energy ($1,252 million which
reflects eliminations of purchases from other NU affiliates), higher expense for Yankee primarily due to a full year in 2001 and
higher gas prices ($83 million), and higher expense for WMECO
primarily due to the increased cost of the standard offer supply
($70 million), partially offset by lower wholesale cost for CL&P
and PSNH ($173 million, net of eliminations).
Fuel, purchased and net interchange power expense increased
in 2000, primarily due to higher purchased energy and capacity
costs as a result of higher sales for Select Energy ($1,036 million
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of which $660 million represents purchases from other NU affiliates which are eliminated in consolidation), Yankee expenses
($135 million) and higher purchased power for regulated subsidiaries ($235 million).
Other Operation and Maintenance

Other operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses decreased
$90 million in 2001, primarily due to lower nuclear expenses
($133 million) as a result of the sale of the Millstone units at the
end of the first quarter of 2001, partially offset by higher O&M
expenses for the competitive energy subsidiaries, primarily due to
the acquisition of Boulos ($49 million).
Other O&M expenses decreased $74 million in 2000, primarily due to lower spending at the nuclear units due to better performance ($75 million), lower expenses due to the sale of certain
CL&P and WMECO fossil and hydroelectric generation assets
($74 million), lower corporate support ($38 million), the decommissioning status of Millstone 1 ($17 million), lower environmental-related costs ($12 million) and 1999 expenses associated
with the Con Edison merger ($12 million), partially offset by the
addition of Yankee ($60 million), higher O&M expenses for the
unregulated businesses ($84 million), primarily due to the business expansion, and higher distribution expenses ($29 million),
including increased conservation program expenses.
Depreciation

Depreciation expense decreased $39 million in 2001, primarily
due to the elimination of decommissioning expenses as a result of
the sale of the Millstone units at the end of the first quarter of
2001 ($25 million) and the buydown of the Seabrook Power
Contracts ($14 million).
Depreciation decreased $62 million in 2000, primarily due to
the effect of discontinuing SFAS No. 71 for the portion of the
generation business for CL&P and WMECO and the resulting
reclassification of depreciable nuclear plant balances to regulatory
assets ($84 million) and the sale of certain CL&P and WMECO
fossil and hydroelectric generation assets, partially offset by the
addition of Yankee ($23 million).
Amortization of Regulatory Assets, Net

Amortization of regulatory assets, net increased in 2001, primarily
due to the amortization in 2001 related to the gain on sale of the
Millstone units by CL&P and WMECO ($641 million) and
higher amortization related to restructuring.
Amortization of regulatory assets, net decreased in 2000, primarily due to the amortization in 1999 of the gain on sale of fossil
and hydroelectric generation assets for WMECO and CL&P
($309 million), and changes in amortization levels as a result of
industry restructuring ($95 million). These decreases were partially offset by higher amortization associated with the reclassified
nuclear plant balances ($84 million).
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Taxes Other Than Income Taxes

Taxes other than income taxes decreased in 2001, primarily due to
settlement of a property tax appeal with the City of Meriden for
CL&P and Yankee in 2001 ($15 million), the reduction in property tax for CL&P and WMECO due to the sale of the Millstone
units ($16 million) and lower New Hampshire franchise tax ($5
million), partially offset by higher Connecticut gross earnings
taxes ($14 million) on higher CL&P revenues.
Taxes other than income taxes decreased in 2000, primarily
due to lower Connecticut gross earnings taxes ($12 million) and
lower payroll taxes ($7 million).
Gain on Sale of Utility Plant

NU recorded gains on the sale of CL&P’s and WMECO’s ownership interests in Millstone. A corresponding amount of amortization expense was recorded in 2001.
CL&P and WMECO recorded gains on the sale of their fossil
and hydroelectric generation assets in 1999. A corresponding
amount of amortization expense was recorded.
Other Income/(Loss), Net

Other income/(loss), net increased primarily due to NU’s recognition in 2001 of a gain in connection with the sale of the Millstone
nuclear units to DNCI (the pretax amount of $189 million is
included in other income with an offsetting income tax expense
impact of $73 million), lower nuclear related costs in 2001 ($18
million), lower environmental reserve expense in 2001 ($10 million), and higher interest and dividend income ($20 million), partially offset by the charge related to the forward purchase of 10.1
million NU common shares ($35 million).
Other income/(loss), net increased in 2000, primarily due to
lower nuclear related costs in 2000 ($53 million), a one-time gain
related to the company’s investment in NEON of Mode 1 ($17
million), and the loss in 1999 on the CL&P assignment of market-based contracts to Select Energy ($15 million).

Federal and state income taxes combined increased in 2001,
primarily due to higher taxable income. The increase in income
taxes as a result of higher taxable income was partially offset by a
reduction in income taxes as a result of the favorable resolution of
certain tax contingencies. For further information regarding
income taxes, see the Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes.
Federal and state income tax expense increased approximately
$63 million in 2000. Significant variances responsible for this
increase include higher pretax earnings ($90 million) and lower
adjustments to the tax valuation allowance ($21 million). Reduction in flow-through depreciation and amortization ($51 million)
partially offset the overall change.
Preferred Dividends of Subsidiaries

Preferred dividends decreased in 1999, 2000, and 2001 primarily
due to lower preferred stock outstanding.
Extraordinary Loss, Net of Tax Benefit

The extraordinary loss, net of tax benefit, is primarily due to an
after-tax write-off by PSNH of approximately $225 million of
stranded costs under an industry restructuring settlement with the
state of New Hampshire, combined with other positive effects on
PSNH from the discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 ($11 million)
and a loss associated with the then pending sale of certain HWP
assets ($20 million).
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, Net of Tax Benefit

The cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit,
recorded in 2001, represents the effect of the adoption of SFAS
No. 133 ($22 million).

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net decreased in 2001, primarily due to reacquisitions and retirements of long-term debt ($54 million) and higher short-term borrowings in 2000 associated with asset transfers
and the Yankee merger ($54 million), partially offset by the interest expense associated with the issuance of rate reduction bonds
and certificates in 2001 ($88 million).
Interest expense, net increased in 2000, primarily due to higher short-term borrowings associated with the NGC asset transfer
and the Yankee merger, partially offset by lower long-term debt as
a result of reacquisitions and retirements.
Income Tax Expense

The consolidated statement of income taxes provides a reconciliation of actual and expected tax expense. The tax effect of temporary differences is accounted for in accordance with the rate-making treatment of the applicable regulatory commissions. In past
years, this rate-making treatment has required the company to
provide the customers with a portion of the tax benefits associated
with accelerated tax depreciation in the year it is generated (flowthrough depreciation). As these flow-through differences turn
around, higher tax expense is recorded.
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Company Report

Report of Independent Public
Accountants

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Northeast Utilities and subsidiaries and other sections of this annual
report were prepared by the company. These financial statements,
which were audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, were prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States using estimates and judgments, where required, and
giving consideration to materiality.
The company has endeavored to establish a control environment that encourages the maintenance of high standards of conduct in all of its business activities. The company maintains a system of internal controls over financial reporting, which is
designed to provide reasonable assurance to the company’s management and Board of Trustees regarding the preparation of reliable, published financial statements. The system is supported by
an organization of trained management personnel, policies and
procedures, and a comprehensive program of internal audits.
Through established programs, the company regularly communicates to its management employees their internal control responsibilities and policies prohibiting conflicts of interest.
The Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees is composed
entirely of independent trustees. The Audit Committee meets
periodically with management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors to review the activities of each and to discuss
audit matters, financial reporting and the adequacy of internal
controls.
Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal controls, errors or irregularities may occur and not be detected. The
company believes, however, that its system of internal accounting
controls and control environment provide reasonable assurance
that its assets are safeguarded from loss or unauthorized use and
that its financial records, which are the basis for the preparation of
all financial statements, are reliable.

To the Board of Trustees and
Shareholders of Northeast Utilities:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and consolidated statements of capitalization of Northeast Utilities (a Massachusetts trust) and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, cash flows,
and income taxes for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Northeast Utilities and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
As discussed in Note 1C to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2001, the company adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Hartford, Connecticut
January 22, 2002
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Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31,

2001

(Thousands of Dollars, except share information)

Operating Revenues

$ 6,873,826

2000
$ 5,876,620

1999
$ 4,471,251

Operating Expenses:

Operation –
Fuel, purchased and net interchange power
Other
Maintenance
Depreciation
Amortization of regulatory assets, net
Taxes other than income taxes
Gain on sale of utility plant
Total operating expenses
Operating Income
Other Income/(Loss), Net
Income Before Interest and Income Tax Expense

4,541,342
773,058
258,961
201,013
983,037
219,197
(641,956)
6,334,652
539,174
187,627
726,801

3,303,995
866,742
255,884
239,798
276,821
238,587
—
5,181,827
694,793
(14,309)
680,484

1,898,314
855,917
340,419
302,305
596,437
261,353
(308,914)
3,945,831
525,420
(106,187)
419,233

200,697
—
98,605
299,302
381,182
161,725
219,457
14,162

258,093
—
5,558
263,651
155,582
98,611
56,971
22,755

Interest Expense:

Interest on long-term debt
Interest on rate reduction bonds
Other interest
Interest expense, net
Income Before Income Tax Expense
Income Tax Expense
Income Before Preferred Dividends of Subsidiaries
Preferred Dividends of Subsidiaries
Income before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of tax benefits
Extraordinary loss, net of tax benefit of $169,562
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit of $14,908
Net Income/(Loss)

147,049
87,616
44,993
279,658
447,143
173,952
273,191
7,249
265,942
—
(22,432)
$

243,510

205,295
(233,881)
—
$ (28,586)

$

1.45
(1.65)
—
(0.20)

$

1.45
(1.65)
—
$
(0.20)
141,549,860
141,967,216

$

34,216
—
—
34,216

Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Common Share:

Income before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of tax benefits
Extraordinary loss, net of tax benefit
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit
Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Common Share

$

1.97
—
(0.17)

$

$

1.80

$

$

1.96
—
(0.17)

$

$

1.79

$

0.26
—
—
0.26

Fully Diluted Earnings/(Loss) Per Common Share:

Income before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of tax benefits
Extraordinary loss, net of tax benefit
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit
Fully Diluted Earnings/(Loss) Per Common Share
Basic Common Shares Outstanding (average)
Fully Diluted Common Shares Outstanding (average)

135,632,126
135,917,423

0.26
—
—
$
0.26
131,415,126
132,031,573

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Years Ended December 31,

$

2000
(28,586)

$

—
245
—
245
(28,341)

2001

(Thousands of Dollars)

Net Income/(Loss)

$

243,510

$

1999
34,216

$

—
118
1
119
34,335

Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax:

Qualified cash flow hedging instruments
Unrealized gains on securities
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax

(36,859)
2,620
—
(34,239)

Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

$

209,271

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
At December 31,

2000

2001

(Thousands of Dollars)

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in securitizable assets
Receivables, less accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts
of $16,353 in 2001 and $12,500 in 2000
Unbilled revenues
Fuel, materials and supplies, at average cost
Special deposits
Prepayments and other

$

96,658
36,367

$

200,017
98,146

831,221
126,398
108,516
60,261
126,233

472,863
121,090
163,711
2,624
91,904

1,385,654

1,150,355

5,743,575
634,884
344,063
195,741

9,003,298
608,153
409,035
211,417

6,918,263
3,418,577

10,231,903
7,041,279

3,499,686
289,889
32,564

3,190,624
228,330
128,261

3,822,139

3,547,215

3,950,445
322,600
232,398
61,713
466,460

3,910,801
324,389
139,546
740,058
404,785

5,033,616

5,519,579

$ 10,241,409

$ 10,217,149

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Electric utility
Gas utility
Competitive energy
Other
Less: Accumulated provision for depreciation
Construction work in progress
Nuclear fuel, net
Deferred Debits and Other Assets:

Regulatory assets
Goodwill and other purchased intangible assets, net
Prepaid pension
Nuclear decommissioning trusts, at market
Other

Total Assets
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
At December 31,

2001

2000

290,500
50,462
669,545
26,203
35,659
178,071

$ 1,309,977
340,041
538,983
54,088
41,131
304,810

1,250,440

2,589,030

2,018,351

—

—

100,000

1,491,394
120,071
—
216,566
618,191

1,585,494
153,155
692,560
244,608
452,926

2,446,222

3,128,743

2,292,556

2,029,593

116,200

151,200

Common shares, $5 par value - authorized 225,000,000 shares;
148,890,640 shares issued and 130,132,136 shares outstanding
in 2001 and 148,781,861 shares issued and 143,820,405 shares
outstanding in 2000
Capital surplus, paid in
Temporary equity from stock forward
Deferred contribution plan - employee stock ownership plan
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)/income
Treasury stock

744,453
1,107,609
—
(101,809)
678,460
(32,470)
(278,603)

693,345
942,144
215,000
(114,463)
495,873
1,769
(15,085)

Common Shareholders’ Equity

2,117,640

2,218,583

Total Capitalization

4,526,396

4,399,376

$ 10,241,409

$ 10,217,149

(Thousands of Dollars)

Liabilities and Capitalization
Current Liabilities:

Notes payable to banks
Long-term debt and preferred stock - current portion
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Accrued interest
Other

$

Rate Reduction Bonds
Minority Interest in Consolidated Subsidiary
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:

Accumulated deferred income taxes
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits
Decommissioning obligation - Millstone 1
Deferred contractual obligations
Other
Capitalization:

Long-Term Debt
Preferred Stock
Common Shareholders' Equity:

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)

Total Liabilities and Capitalization
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
(Thousands of Dollars)

Balance as of January 1, 1999

$ 685,156

Net income for 1999
Cash dividends on common
shares-$0.10 per share
Issuance of 362,565 common
shares, $5 par value
Allocation of benefits-ESOP
Unearned stock compensation
Capital stock expenses, net
Other comprehensive income

1,813

Net loss for 2000
Cash dividends on common
shares-$0.40 per share
Issuance of 11,388,032 common
shares, $5 par value
Transaction fee on forward
share purchase arrangement
Allocation of benefits-ESOP
Redemption of
preferred stock
Capital stock expenses, net
Other comprehensive income

$

941,960

3,505
(3,053)
(1,194)
807

Deferred
Contribution
Plan — ESOP

$ (140,619)

Retained
Earnings
(b)

$ 560,769

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income/(Loss)

$

1,405

Treasury
Stock

$

(1,299)

56,940

942,025

(13,168)

(13,168)
5,318
9,841
(1,194)
807
119

581,817

1,524

(1,299)

(28,586)

(57,358)

(57,358)
221,383
(13,786)

13,262

(749)
2,478

544

Balance as of December 31, 2001 $ 744,453

1,106,580

(114,463)

495,873

1,769

(15,085)

243,510

(60,923)

(60,923)
1,751
(1,663)

12,654
(291,789)
29,934

2,118
(34,239)
$ 1,107,609

$ (101,809)

$ 678,460

$ (32,470)

$ (278,603)

(a) In conjunction with NU’s forward share purchase arrangement, 10,112,879 shares or $50.6 million and $164.4 million,
respectively, were reclassified from Common Shares and Capital Surplus, Paid In, at December 31, 2000 and 1999, to Temporary
Equity from Stock Forward.
(b) Certain consolidated subsidiaries have dividend restrictions imposed by their long-term debt agreements. These restrictions also
limit the amount of retained earnings available for NU common dividends. At December 31, 2001, retained earnings available for
payment of dividends totaled $267.5 million.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2,218,583

243,510

1,207

(2,296)

(13,786)
11,645
(749)
2,478
245

245

Balance as of December 31, 2000 743,909

2,083,311

(28,586)

164,443

(1,617)

$ 2,047,372
34,216

12,894

(127,725)

Total

34,216

119

Balance as of December 31, 1999 686,969

Net income for 2001
Cash dividends on common
shares-$0.45 per share
Issuance of 108,779 common
shares, $5 par value
Transaction fee on forward
share purchase arrangement
Allocation of benefits-ESOP
Repurchase of common shares
Mark-to-market on forward
share purchase arrangement
Capital stock expenses, net
Other comprehensive loss

Capital
Surplus,
Paid In
(a)

Common
Shares
(a)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31,

2000

2001

(Thousands of Dollars)

1999

Operating Activities:

Income before preferred dividends of subsidiaries
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash flows provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net
Amortization of regulatory assets, net
Gain on sale of utility plant
Cumulative effect of accounting change
Net other (uses)/sources of cash
Changes in working capital:
Receivables and unbilled revenues, net
Fuel, materials and supplies
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Investments in securitizable assets
Other working capital (excludes cash)

$

Net cash flows provided by operating activities

273,191

$

219,457

$

56,971

201,013
(116,704)
983,037
(641,956)
(22,432)
(80,362)

239,798
(16,117)
276,821
—
—
(101,927)

302,305
(183,356)
596,437
(308,914)
—
36,360

(356,863)
55,195
130,562
(27,885)
61,779
(81,837)

(104,868)
12,450
171,148
(128,107)
9,474
254

(106,566)
29,688
8,709
107,929
74,498
157

376,738

578,383

614,218

(428,312)
(14,275)

(345,596)
(61,286)

(278,726)
(42,471)

(442,587)
(105,076)
(15,368)
(51,677)
1,048,636
(1,176,872)
(25,823)
—

(406,882)
(39,550)
(7,140)
(28,478)
—
—
—
(260,347)

(321,197)
(74,231)
(31,897)
13,084
565,436
—
—
—

(768,767)

(742,397)

151,195

1,751
(291,789)
703,000
2,118,400
(100,049)
(1,019,477)
(714,226)
(60,768)
(100,000)
(180,000)
(7,249)
(60,923)

4,269
—
26,477
—
—
961,977
(685,555)
(126,771)
—
—
(14,162)
(57,358)

5,318
—
200
—
—
248,000
(817,759)
(46,250)
—
—
(22,755)
(13,168)

288,670

108,877

(646,414)

(103,359)
200,017

(55,137)
255,154

118,999
136,155

Investing Activities:

Investments in regulated plant:
Electric, gas and other utility plant
Nuclear fuel
Net cash flows used for investments in regulated plant
Investments in nuclear decommissioning trusts
Investments in competitive energy assets
Other investment activities, net
Net proceeds from the sale of utility plant
Buyout/buydown of IPP contracts
Payment for the purchase of SENY, net of cash acquired
Payment for the purchase of Yankee, net of cash acquired
Net cash flows (used in)/provided by investing activities
Financing Activities:

Issuance of common shares
Repurchase of common shares
Issuance of long-term debt
Issuance of rate reduction bonds
Retirement of rate reduction bonds
Net (decrease)/increase in short-term debt
Reacquisitions and retirements of long-term debt
Reacquisitions and retirements of preferred stock
Retirement of monthly income preferred securities
Retirement of capital lease obligation
Cash dividends on preferred stock
Cash dividends on common shares
Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

$

96,658

$

200,017

$

255,154

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Capitalization
At December 31,

$ 2,117,640

2000
$ 2,218,583

116,200
—

116,200
20,000

116,200

136,200

—

—

40,768

Total Preferred Stock Subject to Mandatory Redemption
Less: Preferred Stock to Be Redeemed Within One Year

—
—

—
—

40,768
25,768

Preferred Stock Subject to Mandatory Redemption, Net

—

—

15,000

—
—
140,000
80,000
255,945
320,000

220,000
375,000
20,000
80,000
313,050
—

Total First Mortgage Bonds

795,945

1,008,050

Other Long-Term Debt Pollution Control Notes and Other Notes - (c)
2003-2006
Adjustable Rate and 6.24% to 8.58%
2013-2018
Adjustable Rate and 5.90%
2020
Adjustable Rate
2021-2022
Adjustable Rate and 5.45% to 7.65%
2028
5.85% to 5.95%
2031
Adjustable Rate

381,500
25,400
—
428,285
369,300
62,000

139,600
33,400
15,300
443,285
369,300
62,000

Total Pollution Control Notes and Other Notes
Fees and interest due for spent nuclear fuel disposal costs
Other

1,266,485
249,314
36,257

1,062,885
240,303
38,978

Total Other Long-Term Debt

1,552,056

1,342,166

2001

(Thousands of Dollars)

Common Shareholders’ Equity (a)
Cumulative Preferred Stock of Subsidiaries:

$25 par value – authorized 36,600,000 shares at December 31, 2001 and 2000;
no shares outstanding in 2001 and 1,630,722 shares outstanding in 2000
$50 par value – authorized 9,000,000 shares at December 31, 2001 and 2000;
2,324,000 shares outstanding in 2001 and 2000
$100 par value – authorized 1,000,000 shares at December 31, 2001 and 2000;
no shares outstanding in 2001 and 200,000 shares outstanding in 2000
Dividend Rates

Current Redemption Prices

Current Shares Outstanding

$50.50 to $54.00
—

2,324,000
—

Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption:

$50 par value - $1.90 to $3.28
$100 par value - $7.72

Total Preferred Stock Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption
Subject to Mandatory Redemption:

$25 par value - $1.90 to $2.65

—

Long-Term Debt: (b)

First Mortgage Bonds –
Maturity

Interest Rates

2001
2002
2005
2009-2012
2019-2024
2026

7.375% to 7.875%
9.05%
4.998% to 6.75%
6.20% to 7.19%
7.875% to 10.07%
8.81%

Unamortized Premium and Discount, Net

(4,983)

Total Long-Term Debt
Less: Amounts due within one year

2,343,018
50,462

2,343,866
314,273

Long-Term Debt, Net

2,292,556

2,029,593

$ 4,526,396

$ 4,399,376

Total Capitalization

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Statements of Capitalization
(a) On January 2, 2001, NU modified its forward share purchase
arrangements for NU common shares. To initially effect these
arrangements, the financial institutions (counterparties) purchased approximately 10.1 million NU common shares on the
open market in December 1999 and January 2000, in a total
aggregate amount of $215 million, at an average price of $21.26.
The counterparties maintained ownership of the shares until the
transactions were settled. NU accrued charges on the total aggregate amount at LIBOR plus an agreed upon percentage per
annum, until the transactions were settled. These transactions
could have been settled in cash or NU common shares at the company’s discretion. NU repurchased the shares from the counterparties in April 2001 with the proceeds from restructuring. This
amount has been classified as temporary equity from stock forward on NU’s consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2000.

PSNH entered into financing arrangements with the Business
Finance Authority (BFA) of the state of New Hampshire. Pursuant to which the BFA issued five series of PCRBs and loaned the
proceeds to PSNH. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, $407.3
million of the PCRBs were outstanding. PSNH’s obligation to
repay each series of PCRBs is secured by bond insurance and the
first mortgage bonds. Each such series of first mortgage bonds
contains similar terms and provisions as the applicable series of
PCRBs. For financial reporting purposes, these first mortgage
bonds would not be considered outstanding unless PSNH failed
to meet its obligations under the PCRBs.
(c) The average effective interest rate on the variable-rate pollution control notes ranged from 1.2 percent to 3.8 percent for
2001 and 3.2 percent to 6.8 percent for 2000.

(b) Long-term debt maturities and cash sinking fund requirements, excluding fees and interest due for spent nuclear fuel disposal costs, on debt outstanding at December 31, 2001, for the
years 2002 through 2006 are $50.5 million, $318.6 million,
$58.5 million, $86.6 million, and $24.3 million, respectively.
Essentially all utility plant of CL&P, PSNH, NGC, and Yankee is subject to the liens of each company’s respective first mortgage bond indenture.
CL&P has $315.5 million of pollution control notes secured
by second mortgage liens on transmission assets, junior to the
liens of their first mortgage bond indentures.
CL&P has $62 million of tax-exempt PCRBs with bond insurance secured by the first mortgage bonds and a liquidity facility.
For financial reporting purposes, these first mortgage bonds
would not be considered outstanding unless CL&P failed to meet
its obligations under the PCRBs.

Return
Return to
to Highlights
First page

33

NU 2001 Financial mech final

3/15/02 9:08 AM

Page 20

Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes
For the Years Ended December 31,

$

244,501
46,155

$

154,790
23,052

1999

$

290,656

Deferred income taxes, net:
Federal
State

(80,968)
(15,644)

7,297
(5,529)

(134,773)
(28,789)

Total deferred

(96,612)

1,768

(163,562)

Investment tax credits, net

(20,092)

(17,885)

(19,794)

Deferred income taxes are comprised of the tax effects of
temporary differences as follows:
Deferred tax asset associated with net operating losses
Depreciation, leased nuclear fuel, settlement credits and disposal costs
Regulatory deferral
Regulatory disallowance
Sale of generation assets
Pension
Loss on bond redemptions
Securitized contract termination costs and other
Contract settlements
Other
Deferred income taxes, net

A reconciliation between income tax expense and the expected
tax expense at the statutory rate is as follows:
Expected federal income tax
Tax effect of differences:
Depreciation
Amortization of regulatory assets
Amortization of PSNH acquisition costs
Investment tax credit amortization
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Nondeductible stock expenses
Dividends received deduction
Tax asset valuation allowance/reserve adjustments
Merger-related expenditures
Other, net
Total income tax expense
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281,967

$

173,952

$

161,725

$

98,611

$

2,206
(185,850)
(33,187)
2,323
(225,019)
24,183
12,396
279,673
16,640
10,023

$

1,563
9,514
(34,486)
—
—
25,751
655
—
(4,442)
3,213

$

14,801
(4,580)
(27,297)
(30,719)
(125,807)
8,936
314
—
(7,622)
8,412

$

(96,612)

$

1,768

$

(163,562)

$

156,500

$

133,413

$

54,454

2,882
16,835
9,946
(17,885)
11,390
—
(8,618)
(2,136)
5,829
10,069

5,313
5,748
4,512
(20,092)
19,832
12,388
(3,382)
(7,000)
(4,589)
4,722
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

177,842

248,012
33,955

Total current

Total income tax expense

34

2000

2001

(Thousands of Dollars)

The components of the federal and state income tax provisions
charged to the operations are:
Current income taxes:
Federal
State

173,952

$

161,725

24,583
45,825
9,946
(19,794)
3,358
—
(1,314)
(23,129)
4,597
85
$

98,611
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. About Northeast Utilities

Northeast Utilities (NU or the company) is the parent company
of the Northeast Utilities system (NU system). Through its regulated utilities and competitive energy subsidiaries, NU strives to
become the leading regional provider of energy products and services, and one of the major energy traders in the Northeast. The
NU system’s regulated utilities furnish franchised retail electric
service in Connecticut, New Hampshire and western Massachusetts through three wholly owned subsidiaries: The Connecticut
Light and Power Company (CL&P), Public Service Company of
New Hampshire (PSNH) and Western Massachusetts Electric
Company (WMECO). Another wholly owned subsidiary, North
Atlantic Energy Corporation (NAEC), sells all of its entitlement
to the capacity and output of the Seabrook Station nuclear unit
(Seabrook) to PSNH under the terms of two life-of-unit, full cost
recovery contracts (Seabrook Power Contracts). A fifth wholly
owned subsidiary, Holyoke Water Power Company (HWP), also
is engaged in the production of electric power. A sixth wholly
owned subsidiary, Yankee Energy System, Inc. (Yankee), the parent company of Yankee Gas Services Company (Yankee Gas), is
Connecticut’s largest natural gas distribution system.
On November 30, 2001, Select Energy, Inc. (Select Energy)
acquired Niagara Mohawk Energy Marketing, Inc. (NMEM) for
$31.7 million. Assuming Select Energy and NMEM had been
combined as of January 1, 2001, NU’s operating revenues,
income before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of
accounting change, net income, and total fully diluted earnings
per share (EPS) would have been $7.4 billion, $255.5 million,
$245.8 million, and $1.81, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2001.
NU is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as a holding company under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 (1935 Act), and the NU system is subject to the provisions of the 1935 Act. Arrangements among the
NU system companies, outside agencies and other utilities covering interconnections, interchange of electric power and sales of
utility property are subject to regulation by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC) and/or the SEC. The operating
subsidiaries are subject to further regulation for rates, accounting
and other matters by the FERC and/or applicable state regulatory
commissions.
NU Enterprises, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of NU and
acts as the holding company for certain of NU’s competitive energy subsidiaries. These subsidiaries include Select Energy Services,
Inc. (SES), a provider of energy management, demand-side management and related consulting services for commercial, industrial
and institutional electric companies and electric utility companies; Northeast Generation Company (NGC), a corporation that
acquires and manages generation facilities; Northeast Generation
Services Company (NGS), a corporation that maintains and services any fossil or hydroelectric facility that is acquired or con-

tracted with for fossil or hydroelectric generation services, and;
Select Energy, a corporation engaged in the marketing, transportation, storage, and sale of energy commodities, at wholesale,
in designated geographical areas and in the marketing of electricity to retail customers.
Another subsidiary is Mode 1 Communications, Inc. (Mode
1), an investor in a fiber-optic communications network.
Several wholly owned subsidiaries of NU provide support services for the NU system companies and, in some cases, for other
New England utilities. Northeast Utilities Service Company provides centralized accounting, administrative, engineering, financial, information resources, legal, operational, planning, purchasing, and other services to the NU system companies. North
Atlantic Energy Service Corporation has operational responsibility for Seabrook. Three other subsidiaries construct, acquire or
lease some of the property and facilities used by the NU system
companies.
B. Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the NU system include
the accounts of all subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Certain reclassifications of prior years’ data have been made to
conform with the current year’s presentation.
C. New Accounting Standards

Derivative Instruments: Effective January 1, 2001, NU adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
as amended. All derivative instruments have been identified and
recorded at fair value effective January 1, 2001. In addition, for
those derivative instruments which are hedging an identified risk,
NU has designated and documented all hedging relationships.
For those contracts that do not meet the hedging requirements, the changes in fair value of those contracts were recognized
currently in earnings. As explained in Note 9, commodity derivatives that are utilized for trading purposes are accounted for using
the mark-to-market method, under Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) Issue No. 98-10, “Accounting for Energy Trading and
Risk Management Activities.”
On June 27, 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) cleared SFAS No. 133 Implementation Issue No. C15,
“Scope Exceptions: Normal Purchases and Normal Sales Exception for Option-Type Contracts and Forward Contracts in Electricity.” Under Issue No. C15, power purchase or sales agreements, including capacity contracts, for the purchase or sale of
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electricity would qualify for the normal purchases and normal
sales exception provided that certain criteria are met. The company has reviewed its capacity contracts and other applicable energy
contracts and has determined that they should not be marked-tomarket under the criteria in the guidance cleared by the FASB on
June 27, 2001.
On December 19, 2001, the FASB issued revised guidance
regarding power purchase and sales agreements. The revised guidance is effective on July 1, 2002. Management is currently evaluating the impacts of the guidance issued by the FASB on December 19, 2001, on its accounting for capacity contracts, however,
management does not expect it to have a material effect on its
consolidated financial statements.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: In June 2001, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
This statement requires that goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets not be amortized effective January 1, 2002. This statement also requires that goodwill will be subject to at least an
annual assessment for impairment by applying a fair value-based
test also effective January 1, 2002. Based on the goodwill and
intangible assets maintained by the NU system companies, management believes that upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, annual
goodwill amortization expense will be reduced by $9 million.
Management is in the process of the first assessment of impairment of goodwill and expects to complete this assessment by the
June 30, 2002, deadline. Upon adoption of the impairment testing rules under SFAS No. 142, there may be a cumulative effect of
an accounting change which management has not evaluated at
this time.
Asset Retirement Obligations: Also in June 2001, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” This statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible longlived assets and the associated asset retirement costs and applies to
(a) all entities and (b) legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development, and/or the normal operation of a longlived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. SFAS No. 143
is effective for NU’s 2003 calendar year. Upon adoption of SFAS
No. 143, there may be an impact on NU’s consolidated financial
statements which management has not estimated at this time.
Long-Lived Assets: In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No.
144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.” This statement modifies financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. SFAS No.
144 is effective for NU’s 2002 calendar year. Currently, management does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 144 to have a
material impact on NU’s consolidated financial statements.
D. Investments and Jointly Owned Electric Utility Plant

Regional Nuclear Generating Companies: CL&P, PSNH and
WMECO own common stock in four regional nuclear companies
(Yankee Companies). The NU system’s ownership interests in the
Yankee Companies at December 31, 2001 and 2000, which are
accounted for on the equity method due to the NU system companies’ ability to exercise significant influence over their operating
and financial policies are 49 percent of the Connecticut Yankee
Atomic Power Company (CYAPC), 38.5 percent of the Yankee
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Atomic Electric Company (YAEC), 20 percent of the Maine Yankee Atomic Power Company (MYAPC), and 16 percent of the
Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Corporation (VYNPC). The NU
system’s total equity investment in the Yankee Companies at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, is $52.5 million and $62.5 million, respectively. Each Yankee Company owns a single nuclear
generating unit. However, VYNPC was the only unit still in operation at December 31, 2001.
Seabrook: CL&P and NAEC together have a 40.04 percent
joint ownership interest in Seabrook, a 1,148 megawatt nuclear
generating unit. NAEC sells all of its share of the power generated
by Seabrook to PSNH under the Seabrook Power Contracts.
CL&P and NAEC expect to sell their joint ownership interests in
Seabrook around the end of 2002 through a public auction.
Plant-in-service and the accumulated provision for depreciation for the NU system’s share of Millstone 2 and 3 and Seabrook
are as follows:
At December 31

(Millions of Dollar)

2000

2001

Plant-in-service:
Millstone 2
$
—
Millstone 3
—
Seabrook
912.5
Accumulated provision for depreciation:
Millstone 2
$
—
Millstone 3
—
Seabrook
840.6

$

962.0
2,427.2
909.3

$

953.6
2,214.3
821.3

Hydro-Quebec: NU has a 22.66 percent equity ownership
interest, totaling $13.6 million and $15 million at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively, in two companies that transmit electricity imported from the Hydro-Quebec system in Canada.
E. Depreciation

The provision for depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method based on the estimated remaining useful lives of depreciable utility plant-in-service, adjusted for salvage value and removal
costs, as approved by the appropriate regulatory agency where
applicable. Depreciation rates are applied to plant-in-service from
the time they are placed in service. When plant is retired from service, the original cost of the plant, including costs of removal less
salvage, is charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation.
The depreciation rates for the several classes of electric plant-inservice are equivalent to a composite rate of 3.1 percent in 2001
and 2000 and 3.3 percent in 1999.
As a result of discontinuing the application of SFAS No. 71,
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,” for
CL&P’s and WMECO’s generation businesses in 1999, including
CL&P’s ownership interest in Seabrook, NU recorded a charge to
accumulated depreciation for the nuclear plant in excess of the
estimated fair market value at the time in the amount of approximately $2 billion and a corresponding regulatory asset was created. In 2000, HWP discontinued SFAS No. 71 and recorded a
charge to accumulated depreciation for the plant in excess of fair
value for certain hydroelectric generation assets, which was
recorded as an extraordinary loss. These assets were sold in the
fourth quarter of 2001.
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F. Revenues

Regulated utility revenues are based on authorized rates applied to
each customer’s use of energy. In general, rates can be changed
only through a formal proceeding before the appropriate regulatory commission. Regulatory commissions also have authority over
the terms and conditions of nontraditional rate-making arrangements.
Revenues for NU’s competitive energy subsidiaries, including
Select Energy and NGC, are recognized when the energy is delivered or service is provided.
At the end of each accounting period, CL&P, PSNH,
WMECO, Select Energy, and Yankee Gas accrue a revenue estimate for the amount of energy delivered but unbilled.
G. Regulatory Accounting and Assets

The accounting policies of the NU system regulated operating
companies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States applicable to rate-regulated enterprises and historically reflect the effects of the rate-making process in accordance with SFAS No. 71.
CL&P’s, PSNH’s and WMECO’s transmission and distribution businesses continue to be cost-of-service rate regulated, and
management believes the application of SFAS No. 71 to that portion of those businesses continues to be appropriate. Management
also believes it is probable that the NU system operating companies will recover their investments in long-lived assets, including
regulatory assets. These costs will be recovered over a period of
time ranging from 7 to 26 years, subject to certain adjustments.
Stranded costs for CL&P and WMECO will be recovered
through a transition charge over a 12-year period. PSNH has
three categories of stranded costs. Part 1 costs are securitized regulatory assets that are recovered over the life of the rate reduction
bonds. Part 2 costs are ongoing costs consisting of nuclear decommissioning and independent power producer costs that are recovered as incurred, over the time period PSNH is responsible for
those costs. Part 3 costs are nonsecuritized regulatory assets which
must be recovered by a recovery end date to be determined in
accordance with the “Agreement to Settle PSNH Restructuring”
(Settlement Agreement) or which will be written off as stipulated
by that Settlement Agreement. Based on current projections,
PSNH expects to fully recover all of its Part 3 costs by the recovery
end date.
In March 2000, CL&P and WMECO completed the auction
of certain hydroelectric generation assets with a book value of
$129 million. NGC was the winning bidder in the auction and
paid approximately $865.5 million for these assets. Restructuring
legislation in both Connecticut and Massachusetts requires gains
from the sale of generation to be used to reduce regulatory assets
and other stranded costs. Since the entities to the transaction are
all wholly owned by NU, a gain was not recognized. In connection with this transaction, the remaining unamortized balance of
the regulatory asset created of $654.5 million will be recovered
over the next 24 years. This regulatory asset is not specifically
earning a return in rates. Management continues to evaluate the
recovery of this regulatory asset for impairment and has concluded the asset is not impaired at this time.

In addition, all other remaining material regulatory assets are
earning a return. The components of the NU system companies’
regulatory assets are as follows:
At December 31,

2001

(Millions of Dollars)

Recoverable nuclear costs
Securitized regulatory assets
Income taxes, net
Unrecovered contractual obligations
Recoverable energy costs, net
Other
Totals

$

894.5
2,004.1
312.8
78.3
334.5
326.2

$ 3,950.4

2000
$ 2,565.8
—
504.7
255.8
332.5
252.0
$ 3,910.8

As a result of discontinuing the application of SFAS No. 71 for
CL&P’s and WMECO’s generation businesses, CL&P and
WMECO had unamortized balances of $1.35 billion and $286.9
million, respectively, included in recoverable nuclear costs at
December 31, 2000. These amounts were the result of reclassified
nuclear plant in excess of its estimated fair market value from plant
to regulatory assets, which took place in 1999. In March 2001,
CL&P and WMECO sold their ownership interests in the Millstone units. The gain on these sales in the amount of approximately $521.6 million and $119.8 million, respectively, for CL&P and
WMECO were used to offset recoverable nuclear costs, resulting
in unamortized balances of $690.3 million and $130.7 million,
respectively, after the current year’s amortization expense. Also
included in that regulatory asset component for 2001 and 2000
are $44.5 million and $449.2 million, respectively, which includes
Millstone 1 recoverable nuclear costs relating to the recoverable
portion of the undepreciated plant and related assets ($44.5 million and $90.8 million, respectively) and the decommissioning
and closure obligation ($358.4 million in 2000). Additionally, in
March 2001, PSNH recorded a regulatory asset in conjunction
with the sale of the Millstone units. The unamortized balance of
$29 million as of December 31, 2001, is included in recoverable
nuclear costs.
In 2000, PSNH discontinued the application of SFAS No. 71
for its generation business, and created a regulatory asset for
Seabrook over market generation, which was classified as recoverable nuclear costs. The unamortized balance of the regulatory
asset created was $484.7 million as of December 31, 2000. In
April 2001, PSNH issued rate reduction bonds in the amount of
$525 million. PSNH used the majority of this amount to buydown its power contracts with NAEC. The Seabrook over market
generation was securitized at that time and was reclassified as a
securitized regulatory asset as of December 31, 2001.
CL&P issued $1.4 billion in rate reduction certificates and
used $1.1 billion of those proceeds to buyout or buydown certain
contracts with independent power producers. WMECO, issued
rate reduction certificates in the amount of $155 million in May
of 2001 and used $99.7 million of those proceeds to buyout two
contracts with independent power producers. The majority of the
payments to buyout or buydown these contracts were recorded as
securitized regulatory assets. CL&P also securitized a portion of
its SFAS No. 109 regulatory asset.
CL&P, WMECO and PSNH, under the terms of contracts
with the Yankee Companies, are responsible for their proportion-
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ate share of the remaining costs of the units, including decommissioning. These amounts are recorded as unrecovered contractual
obligations. A portion of these obligations was securitized in 2001
and is included in securitized regulatory assets.
CL&P, PSNH, WMECO, and NAEC, under the Energy Policy Act of 1992 (Energy Act), are assessed for their proportionate
shares of the costs of decontaminating and decommissioning uranium enrichment plants owned by the United States Department
of Energy (DOE) (D&D Assessment). The Energy Act requires
that regulators treat D&D Assessments as a reasonable and necessary current cost of fuel, to be fully recovered in rates like any
other fuel cost. CL&P, PSNH, WMECO, and NAEC are currently recovering these costs through rates. As of December 31,
2001 and 2000, the NU system’s total D&D Assessment deferrals
were $35.4 million and $34.5 million, respectively, and have been
recorded as recoverable energy costs, net.
In addition, through December 31, 1999, CL&P had an energy adjustment clause under which fuel prices above or below baserate levels were charged to or credited to customers. Coincident
with the start of restructuring, the energy adjustment clause was
terminated. Energy costs deferred and not yet collected under the
energy adjustment clause amounted to $59 million and $61.1
million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, which have
been recorded as recoverable energy costs, net.
In conjunction with the implementation of restructuring
under the Settlement Agreement on May 1, 2001, the fuel and
purchased-power adjustment clause (FPPAC) was discontinued.
At December 31, 2001 and 2000, PSNH had $251.4 million and
$230.1 million, respectively, of recoverable energy costs deferred
under the FPPAC, including previous deferrals of purchases from
independent power producers. Under the Settlement Agreement,
the FPPAC deferrals are recovered as a Part 3 regulatory asset
through a transition charge, subject to a prudence determination
by the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission (NHPUC).

I. Cash And Cash Equivalents

H. Income Taxes

In conjunction with the Yankee acquisition on March 1, 2000,
common stock was issued and debt was assumed as follows
(millions of dollars):

The tax effect of temporary differences (differences between the
periods in which transactions affect income in the financial statements and the periods in which they affect the determination of
taxable income) is accounted for in accordance with the rate-making treatment of the applicable regulatory commissions.
The tax effect of temporary differences, including timing
differences accrued under previously approved accounting standards, that give rise to the accumulated deferred tax obligation
is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and short-term
cash investments which are highly liquid in nature and have original maturities of three months or less.
J. Accounting for Competitive Energy Contracts

The accounting treatment for energy contracts entered into by
Select Energy varies between contracts and depends primarily on
the intended use of the particular contract. Contracts that are
entered into to provide the normal purchase or sale of energy to
customers are recorded at the point of delivery in accordance with
accrual accounting. Contracts that are entered into to speculate in
the commodity market are marked-to-market in accordance with
EITF Issue No. 98-10 and recognized currently in earnings. Contracts that hedge the purchase or delivery of commodities are
marked-to-market in accordance with SFAS No. 133 and earnings are deferred in other comprehensive income until the contracts are utilized.
K. Other Income/(Loss), Net

The components of the NU system companies’ other
income/(loss), net items are as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,

(Millions of Dollars)

Gain related to
Millstone sale
$
Loss on share repurchase
contracts
Other nuclear-related
costs
Other, net
Totals
$

189.3

Accelerated depreciation and
other plant-related differences
Regulatory assets:
Nuclear stranded investment
Securitized contract termination
costs and other
Income tax gross-up
Other
Totals

38

2000

2001
$

574.1

$

756.0

328.4

608.9

279.7
190.0
119.2

—
189.1
31.5
$ 1,585.5

$ 1,491.4

$

—
33.7
187.6

—

1999
$

—

—

(35.4)

$

(17.9)
3.6
(14.3)

—
(71.1)
(35.1)
$ (106.2)

L. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Fair value of assets acquired,
net of liabilities assumed
Cash paid
NU common stock issued

$

712.5
(261.4)
(217.1)
$ 234.0

For the Years Ended December 31,

At December 31,

(Millions of Dollars)

2000

2001

(Millions of Dollars)

2000

2001

1999

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, net of amounts
capitalized
$ 275.3
Income taxes
$ 321.0

$
$

269.7
253.4

$
$

266.8
86.2

Increase in obligations:
Niantic Bay Fuel Trust
and other capital
leases
$

$

8.1

$

5.9
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2. Short-Term Debt

Limits: The amount of short-term borrowings that may be
incurred by NU and the NU system operating companies is subject to periodic approval by either the SEC under the 1935 Act or
by the respective state regulators. Currently, SEC authorization
allows NU, CL&P, WMECO, and Yankee Gas to incur total
short-term borrowings up to a maximum of $400 million, $375
million, $250 million, and $100 million, respectively. In addition, the charter of CL&P contains preferred stock provisions
restricting the amount of unsecured debt that CL&P may incur.
As of December 31, 2001, CL&P’s charter permits CL&P to
incur $535 million of additional unsecured debt. PSNH and
NAEC are authorized by the NHPUC to incur short-term borrowings up to a maximum of $100 million and $260 million,
respectively.
Credit Agreements:
Regulated Companies: On November 16, 2001, CL&P, PSNH,
WMECO, and Yankee Gas entered into a 364-day unsecured
revolving credit facility for $350 million. This facility replaced a
$250 million facility for CL&P and WMECO and a $60 million
facility for Yankee Gas, both of which expired on November 16,
2001. CL&P may draw up to $150 million under the facility.
PSNH, WMECO and Yankee Gas each may draw up to $100
million, subject to the $350 million maximum borrowing limit
under the facility. Unless extended, the credit facility will expire
on November 15, 2002. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, there
were $160.5 million and $225 million, respectively, in borrowings
under these facilities.
NU Parent: To support the working capital needs of NU and
its competitive energy subsidiaries, NU replaced its $400 million
364-day unsecured revolving credit facility which was to expire on
November 16, 2001, with a 364-day unsecured revolving credit
facility on November 16, 2001. This facility provides a total commitment of $300 million which is available subject to two overlapping sub-limits. First, subject to the notional amount of any
letters of credit outstanding, amounts up to $300 million are
available for advances. Second, subject to the advances outstanding, letters of credit may be issued in notional amounts up to
$200 million. Unless extended, this credit facility will expire on
November 15, 2002. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, there
were $40 million and $173 million, respectively, in borrowings
under these facilities. With regard to credit support, NU had $45
million and $40 million, respectively, in letters of credit issued
under these facilities at December 31, 2001 and 2000.
NAEC: On November 9, 2001, NAEC entered into an unsecured 364-day term credit agreement for $90 million. This term
credit agreement replaced a $200 million term credit agreement
which expired on November 9, 2001. The term credit agreement
contains a mandatory prepayment provision requiring 100 percent prepayment of the aggregate amount outstanding within two
days of the sale of Seabrook. Unless extended, the term credit
agreement will expire on November 8, 2002. At December 31,
2001 and 2000, there were $90 million and $200 million, respectively, in borrowings under these term credit agreements.

Under the aforementioned credit agreements, the respective
borrowers may borrow at fixed or variable rates plus an applicable
margin based upon certain debt ratings, as rated by the lower of
Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s Investors Service. The weighted
average interest rate on the NU system companies’ notes payable
to banks outstanding on December 31, 2001 and 2000, was 3.38
percent and 8.85 percent, respectively.
These credit agreements provide that the parties to these agreements must comply with certain financial and nonfinancial
covenants as are customarily included in such agreements, including, but not limited to, common equity ratios, consolidated debt
ratios and interest coverage ratios. The parties to the credit agreements currently are and expect to remain in compliance with
these covenants.
Guarantees: NU provides credit assurance in the form of guarantees and letters of credit for the financial performance obligations of certain of its competitive energy subsidiaries. NU currently has authorization from the SEC to provide up to $500 million
of guarantees, and has applied for authority to increase this
amount to $750 million. As of December 31, 2001, NU had provided approximately $268.2 million and $45 million of such
guarantees and letters of credit, respectively.
3. Leases

The NU system companies have entered into lease agreements,
some of which are capital leases, for the use of data processing and
office equipment, vehicles, nuclear control room simulators, and
office space. The provisions of these lease agreements generally
provide for renewal options.
Capital lease rental payments charged to operating expense
were $13.1 million in 2001, $50.1 million in 2000, and $20.8
million in 1999. Interest included in capital lease rental payments
was $4.7 million in 2001, $11.6 million in 2000, and $13.7 million in 1999. Operating lease rental payments charged to expense
were $7 million in 2001, $10.1 million in 2000 and $7.5 million
in 1999.
Future minimum rental payments excluding executory costs,
such as property taxes, state use taxes, insurance, and maintenance, under long-term noncancelable leases, as of December 31,
2001 are as follows:
(Millions of Dollars)
Year

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
After 2006
Future minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest
Present value of future
minimum lease payments
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$

$

3.1
3.1
3.0
2.8
2.7
25.1
39.8
22.3

Operating
Leases

$

$

23.7
18.4
15.5
13.3
11.1
23.6
105.6

17.5
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4. Employee Benefits
A. Pension Benefits and Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions

The NU system companies, participate in a uniform noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially all
regular NU system employees. Benefits are based on years of service and the employees’ highest eligible compensation during 60
consecutive months of employment. The total pension credit,
part of which was credited to utility plant, was $191.7 million in
2001, $97.9 million in 2000, and $33.7 million in 1999.
In conjunction with the Voluntary Separation Program (VSP)
that was announced in December 2000, NU recorded $90.7 million in settlement and curtailment gains in 2001. This amount is
included in the $191.7 million in pension credit recorded in
2001. The VSP was intended to reduce the generation-related
support staff between March 1, 2001, and February 28, 2002,
and was available to nonbargaining unit employees who, by February 1, 2002, would be at least age 50, with a minimum of five
years of credited service, and as of December 15, 2000, were
assigned to certain groups and in eligible job classifications.
One component of the VSP included special termination benefits equal to the greater of 5 years added to both age and credited
service of eligible participants or two weeks pay for each year of
service subject to a minimum level of 12 weeks and a maximum
level of 52 weeks for eligible participants. The special termination
benefits associated with the VSP approximated $93.3 million.

The net of the settlement and curtailment gains and the special
termination benefits was approximately $2.6 million, of which
$7.5 million was included in earnings, $5.1 million was deferred
as a regulatory liability and is expected to be returned to customers and $0.2 million was billed to the joint owners of Millstone and Seabrook.
Currently, the NU system companies’ policy is to annually
fund an amount at least equal to that which will satisfy the
requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
and Internal Revenue Code.
The NU system companies also provide certain health care
benefits, primarily medical and dental, and life insurance benefits
through a benefit plan to retired employees. These benefits are
available for employees retiring from the NU system who have
met specified service requirements. For current employees and
certain retirees, the total benefit is limited to two times the 1993
per retiree health care cost. These costs are charged to expense over
the estimated work life of the employee. The NU system companies annually fund postretirement costs through external trusts
with amounts that have been rate-recovered and which also are tax
deductible.
Pension and trust assets are invested primarily in domestic and
international equity securities and bonds.
The following table represents information on the plans’ benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and the respective plans’
funded status:

At December 31,

Pension Beneﬁts

2000

2001

(Millions of Dollars)

Postretirement Beneﬁts

2000

2001

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Yankee merger
Service cost
Interest cost
Employee contribution
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid
Settlements and other

$

(1,670.9)
—
(35.7)
(119.7)
—
(72.2)
228.3
(17.4)

$ (1,516.6)
(66.7)
(41.2)
(118.5)
—
(39.4)
109.5
2.0
$ (1,670.9)

$

(335.3)
—
(6.2)
(27.2)
—
(76.2)
38.0
6.9

$

Benefit obligation at end of year

$

(1,687.6)

$

(400.0)

$

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Yankee merger
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contribution
Employee contribution
Benefits paid

$

2,319.4
—
(100.7)
—
—
(228.3)

$

$

197.6
—
(17.1)
28.6
—
(38.0)

$

1,990.4

$

2,330.2
107.5
(8.8)
—
—
(109.5)
2,319.4

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$

$

171.1

$

Funded status at December 31
Unrecognized transition (asset)/obligation
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized net (gain)/loss

$

302.8
(3.6)
72.8
(139.6)

$

648.5
(5.8)
90.9
(594.1)
139.5

$

(228.9)
159.1
—
55.4

$

Prepaid/(accrued) benefit cost

$

232.4

$

$

(14.4)

$

(306.8)
(9.9)
(7.6)
(25.5)
(0.1)
(13.6)
27.5
0.7
(335.3)

Change in plan assets
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—
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The following actuarial assumptions were used in calculating the plans’ year end funded status:
At December 31,

Pension Beneﬁts

2000
7.50%
4.50
N/A

2001

Discount rate
Compensation/progression rate
Health care cost trend rate (a)

Postretirement Beneﬁts

7.25%
4.25
N/A

2000
7.50%
4.50
5.26

2001
7.25%
4.25
11.00

(a) The annual per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed to decrease to 5.00 percent by 2007.

The components of net periodic benefit (credit)/cost are:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Pension Beneﬁts

2001

(Millions of Dollars)

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of unrecognized net
transition (asset)/obligation
Amortization of prior service cost
Amortization of actuarial gain
Other amortization, net
Settlements and other

$

Net periodic benefit (credit)/cost

$ (191.7)

35.7
119.7
(214.1)
(1.5)
6.9
(47.7)
—
(90.7)

Postretirement Beneﬁts

2000
$ 41.2
118.5
(205.1)

1999
$ 43.7
106.3
(175.5)

(1.4)
7.9
(52.4)
—
(6.6)
$ (97.9)

(1.5)
7.9
(33.5)
—
18.9
$ (33.7)

2001
$

6.2
27.2
(17.0)

2000
$
7.6
25.5
(15.3)

1999
$
7.6
21.8
(11.7)

15.1
—
—
(4.3)
—
28.6

15.1
—
—
(3.1)
—
29.7

14.5
—
—
(2.6)
11.9
$

$

40.2

$

For calculating pension and postretirement benefit costs, the following assumptions were used:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Pension Beneﬁts

Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of return
Compensation/progression rate
Long-term rate of return Health assets, net of tax
Life assets
Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect
on the amounts reported for the health care plans. The effect of
changing the assumed health care cost trend rate by one percentage point in each year would have the following effects:
One
Percentage
Point
Increase

(Millions of Dollars)

Effect on total service and
interest cost components
Effect on postretirement
benefit obligation

One
Percentage
Point
Decrease

$

1.1

$

(1.0)

$

13.4

$

(12.4)

The trust holding the health plan assets is subject to federal
income taxes.
B. 401(k) Savings Plan

NU maintains a 401(k) Savings Plan for substantially all NU system employees. This savings plan provides for employee contributions up to specified limits. NU matches employee contributions

Postretirement Beneﬁts

7.50%
9.50
4.50

2000
7.75%
9.50
4.75

1999
7.00%
9.50
4.25

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

2001

2001
7.50%
N/A
4.50
7.50
9.50

2000
7.75%
N/A
4.75

1999
7.00%
N/A
4.25

7.50
9.50

7.50
9.50

up to a maximum of 3 percent of eligible compensation with cash
and NU stock. The matching contributions made by NU were
$11.7 million in 2001, $13.6 million in 2000, and $13.8 million
in 1999.
C. ESOP

NU maintains an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) for
purposes of allocating shares to employees participating in the
NU system’s 401(k) Savings Plan. Under this arrangement, NU
issued unsecured notes during 1991 and 1992 totaling $250 million, the proceeds of which were lent to the ESOP trust for the
purchase of 10.8 million newly issued NU common shares
(ESOP shares). The ESOP trust is obligated to make principal
and interest payments on the ESOP notes at the same rate that
ESOP shares are allocated to employees. NU makes annual contributions to the ESOP equal to the ESOP’s debt service, less dividends received by the ESOP. All dividends received by the ESOP
on unallocated shares are used to pay debt service and are not considered dividends for financial reporting purposes. During the
fourth quarter of 1999 through the second quarter of 2001, NU
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declared a $0.10 per share quarterly dividend. During the third
quarter of 2001 through the fourth quarter of 2001, NU declared
a $0.125 per share quarterly dividend.
In 2001 and 2000, the ESOP trust issued 546,610 and
572,863 of NU common shares, respectively, to satisfy 401(k)
Savings Plan obligations to employees. As of December 31, 2001
and 2000, the total allocated ESOP shares were 6,401,309 and
5,854,699, respectively, and total unallocated ESOP shares were
4,398,876 and 4,945,486, respectively. The fair market value of
unallocated ESOP shares as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, was
$77.6 million and $119.9 million, respectively.
D. Stock-Based Compensation

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP): Since July 1998, the NU
system has maintained an ESPP for all eligible employees. Under
the ESPP, shares of NU common stock were purchased at 6month intervals at 85 percent of the lower of the price on the first
or last day of each 6-month period. Employees may purchase
shares having a value not exceeding 25 percent of their compensation at the beginning of the purchase period. During 2000,
employees purchased 199,520 shares at discounted prices ranging

from $17.48 to $18.49. At December 31, 2000, 1,417,156 shares
remained reserved for future issuance under the ESPP. Effective
January 1, 2001, the ESPP was terminated because of the then
pending merger.
In the second quarter of 2001, a new ESPP was adopted by
NU’s Board of Trustees and approved by NU’s shareholders.
Shares under the new ESPP were issued in the first quarter of
2002.
Incentive Plans: The NU system has long-term incentive plans
authorizing various types of share-based awards, including stock
options, to be made to eligible employees and board members.
The exercise price of stock options, as set at the time of grant, is
generally equal to the fair market value per share at the date of
grant. Under the Northeast Utilities Incentive Plan (Incentive
Plan), the number of shares which may be utilized for awards
granted during a given calendar year may not exceed one percent
of the total number of shares of NU common stock outstanding
as of the first day of that calendar year.
Stock option transactions for 1999, 2000 and 2001, including
those options acquired in connection with the Yankee merger, are
as follows:
Exercise Price Per Share

Range

Weighted
Average

— $ 16.8125
— $ 21.1250
— $ 16.8125
— $ 16.3125
— $ 21.1250
— $ 22.2500
— $ 12.6888
— $ 19.5000
— $ 19.5000
— $ 22.2500
— $ 21.0300
— $ 19.5000
— $ 21.0300

$ 13.5213
$ 15.2514
$ 16.3986
$ 15.8714
$ 14.0585
$ 18.7029
$ 10.7653
$ 16.0658
$ 16.6515
$ 15.2569
$ 20.2065
$ 16.0970
$ 18.2217

Options

Outstanding December 31, 1998
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding December 31, 1999
Granted
Yankee merger
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding December 31, 2000
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

1,233,678
644,123
(19,368)
(32,177)
1,826,256
669,470
10,167
(43,750)
(28,281)
2,433,862
817,300
(108,779)
(132,467)

$ 9.6250
$ 14.9375
$ 16.3125
$ 14.9375
$ 9.6250
$ 18.4375
$ 9.3640
$ 14.9375
$ 14.9375
$ 9.3640
$ 17.4000
$ 9.3640
$ 14.8750

Outstanding December 31, 2001

3,009,916

$

9.6250 — $ 22.2500

$ 16.4467

Exercisable December 31, 1999
Exercisable December 31, 2000

711,787
1,298,339

$ 9.6250 — $ 21.1250
$ 9.3640 — $ 22.2500

$ 14.0102
$ 14.2021

Exercisable December 31, 2001

1,712,260

$

$ 14.4650

For certain options that were granted in 2001 and 2000, and
for the options that were granted in 1999, the vesting schedule for
these options is ratably over three years from the date of grant.
Other options granted in 2001 and 2000 vest 50 percent at the
date of grant and 50 percent one year from the date of grant.
Also under the Incentive Plan, the NU system awarded 91,120
of restricted shares in 1999. These shares have the same vesting
schedule as the options granted under the Incentive Plan. The
NU system has also made several small grants of restricted stock
and other incentive-based stock compensation. During 2001,
2000 and 1999, $1.2 million, $1.9 million and $2.2 million,
respectively, was expensed for stock-based compensation.
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9.6250 — $ 22.2500

Had compensation cost been determined for the ESPP and the
Incentive Plan stock options under the fair value method as
opposed to the intrinsic value method followed by the NU system, net income/(loss) and net income/(loss) per share would
have been as follows:
(Millions of Dollars,
except per share amounts)

Net income/(loss)
Basic income/(loss) per
common share
Diluted income/(loss)
per common share
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$

239.1

2000
$ (33.9)

$

1.76

$ (0.24)

$

0.23

$

1.76

$ (0.24)

$

0.22

2001

1999
$ 29.6
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The fair value of each stock option grant has been estimated on
the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions:
2001

Risk-free interest rate
Expected life
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yield

5.34%
10 years
25.47%
2.11%

2000
6.56%
10 years
26.15%
1.82%

1999
5.69%
10 years
36.21%
1.89%

The weighted average grant date fair values of options granted
during 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $6.94, $7.50, and $6.79,
respectively. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the weighted
average remaining contractual lives for those options outstanding
are 7.50 years and 7.92 years, respectively.
5. Sale of Customer Receivables

On July 11, 2001, CL&P renewed its accounts receivable securitization credit line for one year. At that time, the credit line capacity
was reduced from $200 million to $100 million.
As of December 31, 2001, CL&P had no amounts outstanding through the CL&P Receivables Corporation (CRC), a wholly
owned subsidiary of CL&P. As of December 31, 2000, CL&P
had sold accounts receivable of $170 million to a third-party purchaser with limited recourse through the CRC. In addition, at
December 31, 2000, $18.9 million of accounts receivable were
designated as collateral under the agreement with the CRC.
Concentrations of credit risk to the purchaser under the company’s agreement with respect to the receivables are limited due to
CL&P’s diverse customer base within its service territory.
6. Nuclear Generation Assets Divestiture

On March 31, 2001, CL&P and WMECO consummated the
sale of Millstone 1 and 2 to a subsidiary of Dominion Resources,
Inc., Dominion Nuclear Connecticut, Inc. (DNCI). CL&P,
PSNH and WMECO sold their ownership interests in Millstone
3 to DNCI. This sale included all of the respective joint ownership interests of CL&P, PSNH and WMECO in Millstone 3. The
NU system received approximately $1.2 billion of cash proceeds
from the sale and applied the proceeds to taxes and reductions of
debt and equity at CL&P, PSNH and WMECO. As part of the
sale, DNCI assumed responsibility for decommissioning the three
Millstone units.
In connection with the sale, CL&P and WMECO recorded a
gain in the amount of $642 million which was used to offset
stranded costs. Additionally, NU recorded an after-tax gain of
$115.6 million related to the prior settlement of Millstone 3 joint
owner claims.
7. Commitments and Contingencies
A. Restructuring and Rate Matters

Connecticut: On September 27, 2001, CL&P filed its application
with the Connecticut Department of Public Utility Control
(DPUC) for approval of the disposition of the proceeds from the
sale of the Millstone units to DNCI. This application described

and requested DPUC approval for CL&P’s treatment of its share
of the proceeds from the sale. In accordance with Connecticut’s
electric utility industry restructuring legislation, CL&P was
required to utilize any gains from the Millstone sale to offset
stranded costs. There are certain contingencies related to this filing regarding the potential disallowance of what management
believes were prudently incurred costs. Management believes the
recoverability of these costs is probable. A decision from the
DPUC is expected in the first half of 2002.
New Hampshire: In July 2001, the NHPUC opened a docket
to review the FPPAC cost accruals between August 2, 1999, and
April 30, 2001. Hearings at the NHPUC are expected to be held
during the spring of 2002. Under the Settlement Agreement, the
FPPAC deferrals are recovered as a Part 3 regulatory asset through
a stranded cost recovery charge. At December 31, 2001 and 2000,
PSNH had $183.3 million and $145.9 million, respectively, of
recoverable deferred energy costs deferred under the FPPAC,
excluding previous deferrals of purchases from independent
power producers. Management does not expect the outcome of
these hearings to have a material impact on its earnings.
Massachusetts: During the first quarter of 2000, WMECO
filed its first annual stranded cost reconciliation filing covering the
period March 1, 1998 through December 31, 1999. The hearing
and briefing processes related to this filing were completed during
the second quarter of 2001. A Massachusetts Department of
Telecommunications and Energy (DTE) decision is expected in
the first half of 2002. On March 30, 2001, WMECO also filed its
second annual stranded cost reconciliation with the DTE for calendar year 2000 with the related review and hearing processes
anticipated to be scheduled for the first half of 2002. The cumulative deferral of unrecovered stranded costs, as filed through calendar year 2000, is approximately $4 million. Management believes
these costs are fully recoverable.
WMECO is in the process of finalizing its 2001 annual transition cost reconciliation which is expected to be filed with the
DTE on March 29, 2002. This filing reconciles the recovery of
stranded generation costs for calendar year 2001. Also included in
this filing are the sales proceeds from WMECO’s portion of Millstone, the impact of securitization and an approximate $13 million benefit to ratepayers from WMECO’s nuclear performancebased ratemaking process. The inclusion of these items as part of
the reconciliation filing allows WMECO to accelerate the recovery of total stranded generation assets. Management anticipates a
formal hearing in 2002 regarding this filing after a period of data
discovery by the DTE and other intervenors.
B. Environmental Matters

The NU system is subject to environmental laws and regulations
intended to mitigate or remove the effect of past operations and
improve or maintain the quality of the environment. As such, the
NU system has active environmental auditing and training programs and believes it is substantially in compliance with the current laws and regulations.
However, the normal course of operations may involve activities and substances that expose the NU system to potential liabilities of which management cannot determine the outcome. Additionally, management cannot determine the outcome for
liabilities that may be imposed for past acts, even though such
past acts may have been lawful at the time they occurred. Manage-
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ment does not believe, however, that this will have a material
impact on the NU system’s financial statements.
Based upon currently available information for the estimated
remediation costs as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the liability
recorded by the NU system for its estimated environmental remediation costs amounted to $46.2 million and $58.2 million,
respectively.

million per year. In addition, through purchased-power contracts
with VYNPC, the NU system would be responsible for up to an
additional assessment of $14.1 million per incident, of which payments would be limited to $1.6 million per year.
NU expects to terminate its nuclear insurance upon the
divestiture of its remaining nuclear units.

C. Spent Nuclear Fuel Disposal Costs

Yankee Companies: Under the terms of their agreements, the NU
system companies paid their ownership (or entitlement) shares of
costs, which included depreciation, operation and maintenance
(O&M) expenses, taxes, the estimated cost of decommissioning,
and a return on invested capital. These costs were recorded as purchased-power expenses. The total cost of purchases under contracts with VYNPC amounted to $25.3 million in 2001, $24.9
million in 2000, and $29.2 million in 1999. VYNPC is in the
process of selling its nuclear unit. Upon completion of the sale, it
is expected that these long-term contracts will be replaced with
different contracts with the new buyer.
Energy Procurement Contracts: CL&P, PSNH and WMECO
have entered into various arrangements for the purchase of capacity and energy. The total cost of purchases under these arrangements amounted to $363.9 million in 2001, $482.1 million in
2000 and $461.8 million in 1999.
Gas Procurement Contracts: Yankee Gas has entered into longterm contracts for the purchase of a specified quantity of gas in
the normal course of business as part of its portfolio to meet its
actual sales commitments. These contracts extend through 2006.
Hydro-Quebec: Along with other New England utilities,
CL&P, PSNH, WMECO, and HWP have entered into agreements to support transmission and terminal facilities to import
electricity from the Hydro-Quebec system in Canada. CL&P,
PSNH, WMECO, and HWP are obligated to pay, over a 30-year
period ending in 2020, their proportionate shares of the annual
O&M expenses and capital costs of those facilities.
Estimated Annual Costs: The estimated annual costs of the NU
system’s significant long-term contractual arrangements, absent
the effects of any contract terminations, buydowns or buyouts, or
sales of generation assets are as follows:

Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, CL&P, PSNH,
WMECO, and NAEC must pay the DOE for the disposal of
spent nuclear fuel and high-level radioactive waste. The DOE is
responsible for the selection and development of repositories for,
and the disposal of, spent nuclear fuel and high-level radioactive
waste. For nuclear fuel used to generate electricity prior to April 7,
1983 (Prior Period Fuel), an accrual has been recorded for the full
liability and payment must be made prior to the first delivery of
spent fuel to the DOE. Until such payment is made, the outstanding balance will continue to accrue interest at the 3-month
treasury bill yield rate. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, fees
due to the DOE for the disposal of Prior Period Fuel were $249.3
million and $240.3 million, respectively, including interest costs
of $167.2 million and $158.2 million, respectively.
Fees for nuclear fuel burned on or after April 7, 1983, are
billed currently to customers and paid to the DOE on a quarterly
basis. NU remains responsible for fees to be paid for fuel burned
until the divestiture of the Millstone and Seabrook nuclear units.
D. Nuclear Insurance Contingencies

Insurance policies covering the NU system’s nuclear facilities have
been purchased for the primary cost of repair, replacement or
decontamination of utility property, certain extra costs incurred in
obtaining replacement power during prolonged accidental outages and the excess cost of repair, replacement or decontamination
or premature decommissioning of utility property.
The NU system is subject to retroactive assessments if losses
under those policies exceed the accumulated funds available to the
insurer. The maximum potential assessments with respect to losses
arising during the current policy year for the primary property
insurance program, the replacement power policies and the excess
property damage policies are $4.3 million, $1.4 million and $6.7
million, respectively. In addition, insurance has been purchased in
the aggregate amount of $200 million on an industry basis for
coverage of worker claims.
Under certain circumstances, in the event of a nuclear incident
at one of the nuclear facilities covered by the federal government’s
third-party liability indemnification program, the NU system
could be assessed liabilities in proportion to its ownership interest
in each of its nuclear units up to $83.9 million. The NU system’s
payment of this assessment would be limited to, in proportion to
its ownership interest in each of its nuclear units, $10 million in
any one year per nuclear unit. In addition, if the sum of all claims
and costs from any one nuclear incident exceeds the maximum
amount of financial protection, the NU system would be subject
to an additional 5 percent, or $4.2 million, liability, in proportion
to its ownership interests in each of its nuclear units. Based upon
its ownership interest in Seabrook, the NU system’s maximum liability, including any additional assessments, would be $34.9 million per incident, of which payments would be limited to $4.8
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E. Long-Term Contractual Arrangements

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Totals
VYNPC
$ 30.9 $ 29.4 $ 33.5 $ 34.0 $ 30.8 $ 158.6
Energy
Procurement
Contracts 331.5 341.1 345.6 350.5 350.1 1,718.8
Gas Procurement
Contracts
52.6 54.2 55.2 53.6
9.3
224.9
Hydro-Quebec 27.1 26.1 25.0 24.1 21.7
124.0
Totals
$442.1 $450.8 $459.3 $462.2 $411.9 $2,226.3
(Millions of Dollars)

Select Energy: Select Energy maintains long-term agreements
to purchase energy in the normal course of business as part of its
portfolio of resources to meet its actual or expected sales commitments. The aggregate amount of these purchase contracts was
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$3.5 billion at December 31, 2001. These contracts extend
through 2006 as follows:
(Millions of Dollars)

Year
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
Total

$ 2,416.2
836.2
145.9
95.7
34.8
$ 3,528.8

F. Consolidated Edison, Inc. Merger Litigation

Certain gain and loss contingencies exist with regard to the litigation related to the merger agreement between NU and Consolidated Edison, Inc. For further information regarding this litigation, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Consolidated Edison, Inc.
Merger Litigation.”
8. Nuclear Decommissioning and Plant Closure Costs

Seabrook: Seabrook has a service life that is expected to end in
2026, and upon retirement, must be decommissioned. The NU
system’s ownership share of the estimated cost of decommissioning Seabrook, in year end 2001 dollars, is $222.5 million. Nuclear
decommissioning costs are accrued over the expected service life
of the unit and are included in depreciation expense and the accumulated provision for depreciation. Nuclear decommissioning
expenses for Seabrook amounted to $7.8 million in 2001, $7.7
million in 2000 and $7.6 million in 1999. Through December
31, 2001 and 2000, total decommissioning expenses of $52.5
million and $44.7 million, respectively, have been collected from
customers related to Seabrook and are reflected in the accumulated provision for depreciation. Payments for the NU system’s ownership share of the cost of decommissioning Seabrook are paid to
an independent decommissioning financing fund managed by the
state of New Hampshire.
As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, $52 million and $44.2
million, respectively, have been transferred to the Seabrook external decommissioning trust. Earnings on the decommissioning
trust increase the decommissioning trust balance and the accumulated provision for depreciation. Unrealized gains and losses associated with the decommissioning trust also impact the balance of
the trust and the accumulated provision for depreciation. The fair
values of the amounts in the Seabrook external decommissioning
trust were $61.7 million and $56.6 million at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively. Upon divestiture, the balance in the
Seabrook decommissioning trust will be transferred to the buyer.
Yankee Companies: VYNPC owns and operates a nuclear generating unit with a service life that is expected to end in 2012. The
NU system’s ownership share of estimated costs, in year end 2001
dollars, of decommissioning this unit is $75.4 million. In August
2001, VYNPC agreed to sell its nuclear generating unit for $180
million, including $35 million for nuclear fuel, to an unaffiliated
company. Among other commitments, the acquiring company
agreed to assume the obligation to decommission the unit after it
is taken out of service and agreed to provide the current level of

output from the unit through 2012. The sale is subject to the
approval of the Vermont Public Service Board, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, the FERC and other regulatory authorities.
The closing on the sale is expected to be in the first half of 2002.
As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, NU’s remaining estimated obligations, including decommissioning for the units owned
by CYAPC, YAEC and MYAPC, which have been shut down
were $216.6 million and $244.6 million, respectively.
9. Market Risk and Risk Management Instruments

Competitive Energy Subsidiaries: Select Energy provides both firm
requirement energy services to its customers and engages in energy trading and marketing activities. Select Energy manages its
exposure to risk from existing contractual commitments and provides risk management services to its customers through forward
contracts, futures, over-the-counter swap agreements, and options
(commodity derivatives).
Select Energy has utilized the sensitivity analysis methodology
to disclose the quantitative information for its commodity price
risks. Sensitivity analysis provides a presentation of the potential
loss of future earnings, fair values or cash flows from market risksensitive instruments over a selected time period due to one or
more hypothetical changes in commodity prices, or other similar
price changes.
Commodity Price Risk - Trading Activities: As a market participant in the Northeast United States, Select Energy conducts commodity-trading activities in electricity and its related products,
natural gas and oil and, therefore, experiences net open positions.
Select Energy manages these open positions with strict policies
which limit its exposure to market risk and require daily reporting
to management of potential financial exposure. Commodity
derivatives utilized for trading purposes are accounted for using
the mark-to-market method, under EITF Issue No. 98-10. Under
this methodology, these instruments are adjusted to market value,
and the unrealized gains and losses are recognized in income in
the current period in the consolidated statements of income as
fuel, purchased and net interchange power and in the consolidated balance sheets as prepayments and other. The mark-to-market
positions at December 31, 2001 and 2000, were a positive $44.4
million and a positive $13.8 million, respectively.
Under sensitivity analysis, the fair value of the portfolio is a
function of the underlying commodity, contract prices and market prices represented by each derivative commodity contract. For
swaps, forward contracts and options, market value reflects management’s best estimates considering over-the-counter quotations,
time value and volatility factors of the underlying commitments.
Exchange-traded futures and options are recorded at market,
based on closing exchange prices.
As of December 31, 2001, Select Energy has calculated the
market price resulting from a 10 percent unfavorable change in
forward market prices. That 10 percent change would result in
approximately a $0.6 million decline in the fair value of the Select
Energy trading portfolio. In the normal course of business, Select
Energy also faces risks that are either nonfinancial or nonquantifiable. Such risks principally include credit risk, which is not reflected in the sensitivity analysis above.

Return
Return to
to Highlights
First page

45

NU 2001 Financial mech final

3/15/02 9:08 AM

Page 32

Commodity Price Risk - Nontrading Activities: Select Energy
utilizes derivative financial and commodity instruments (derivatives), including futures and forward contracts, to reduce market
risk associated with fluctuations in the price of electricity and natural gas sold under firm commitments with certain customers.
Select Energy also utilizes derivatives, including price swap agreements, call and put option contracts, and futures and forward
contracts, to manage the market risk associated with a portion of
its anticipated supply requirements. These derivative instruments
have been designated as cash flow hedging instruments.
When conducting sensitivity analysis of the change in the fair
value of Select Energy’s electricity, natural gas and oil nontrading
portfolio, which would result from a hypothetical change in the
future market price of electricity, natural gas and oil, the fair value
of the contracts are determined from models which take into
account estimated future market prices of electricity, natural gas
and oil, the volatility of the market prices in each period, as well as
the time value factors of the underlying commitments. In most
instances, market prices and volatility are determined from quoted prices on the futures exchange.
Select Energy has determined a hypothetical change in the fair
value for its nontrading electricity, natural gas and oil contracts,
assuming a 10 percent unfavorable change in forward market
prices. As of December 31, 2001, an unfavorable 10 percent
change in forward market price would have resulted in a decrease
in fair value of approximately $29 million.
The impact of a change in electricity, natural gas and oil prices
on Select Energy’s nontrading contracts on December 31, 2001, is
not necessarily representative of the results that will be realized
when these contracts are physically delivered.
Select Energy also maintains natural gas service agreements
with certain customers to supply gas at fixed prices for terms
extending through 2004. Select Energy has hedged its gas supply
risk under these agreements through NYMEX contracts. Under
these contracts, the purchase price of a specified quantity of gas is
effectively fixed over the term of the gas service agreements, which
extend through 2004. As of December 31, 2001, the NYMEX
contracts had a notional value of $91.3 million and a negative
after-tax mark-to-market position of $14.7 million.
Derivative Cash Flow Hedge Accounting: Derivative instruments recorded which were effective cash flow hedges resulted in
an increase in other comprehensive income of $12.3 million, net
of tax, upon the adoption of SFAS No. 133. During 2001, a positive $4.5 million, net of tax, was reclassified from other comprehensive income upon the conclusion of these hedged transactions
and recognized in earnings. An additional $1.3 million, net of tax,
was recognized in earnings for those derivatives that were determined to be ineffective. Also, during 2001, new cash flow hedge
transactions were entered into which hedge cash flows through
2027. As a result of these new transactions and market value
changes since January 1, 2001, other comprehensive income
decreased by $53.7 million, net of tax. Accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2001, was a negative $36.9
million, net of tax (decrease to equity), relating to hedged transactions and it is estimated that $29.4 million, net of tax, will be
reclassified as a charge to earnings within the next twelve months.
Cash flows from the hedge contracts are reported in the same category as cash flows from the hedged assets.
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Credit Risk: NU serves a wide variety of customers and suppliers that include independent power producers, industrial companies, gas and electric utilities, oil and gas producers, financial institutions, and other energy marketers. Margin accounts exist within
this diverse group, and NU realizes interest receipts and payments
related to balances outstanding in these accounts. This wide customer and supplier mix generates a need for a variety of contractual structures, products and terms. This multifaceted book of business requires NU to manage the portfolio of market risk inherent
in those transactions in a manner consistent with the parameters
established by NU’s risk management process. Market risks are
monitored regularly by a Risk Oversight Council operating outside of the units that create or actively manage these risk exposures
to ensure compliance with NU’s stated risk management policies.
NU tracks and re-balances the risk in its portfolio in accordance with mark-to-market and other risk management methodologies that utilize forward price curves in the energy markets to
estimate the size and probability of future potential exposure.
Credit risk relates to the risk of loss that NU would incur as a
result of non-performance by counterparties pursuant to the
terms of their contractual obligations. New York Mercantile
Exchange (Exchange) traded futures and option contracts are
guaranteed by the Exchange and have a modest credit risk. NU
has established written credit policies with regard to its counterparties to minimize overall credit risk on all types of transactions.
These policies require an evaluation of potential counterparties’
financial conditions (including credit rating), collateral requirements under certain circumstances (including cash in advance,
letters of credit, and parent guarantees), and the use of standardized agreements, which allow for the netting of positive and negative exposures associated with a single counterparty. This evaluation results in establishing credit limits prior to NU entering into
trading activities. The appropriateness of these limits is subject to
continuing review. Concentrations among these counterparties
may impact NU’s overall exposure to credit risk, either positively
or negatively in that the counterparties may be similarly affected
by changes to economic, regulatory or other conditions.
Regulated Entities:
Interest Rate Risk - Nontrading Activities: NU manages its interest
rate risk exposure by maintaining a mix of fixed and variable rate
debt. In addition, Yankee has entered into an interest rate sensitive
derivative. Yankee uses swap instruments with financial institutions to exchange fixed-rate interest obligations to a blend
between fixed and variable-rate obligations without exchanging
the underlying notional amounts. These instruments convert
fixed interest rate obligations to variable rates. The notional
amounts parallel the underlying debt levels and are used to measure interest to be paid or received and do not represent the exposure to credit loss. As of December 31, 2001, Yankee had outstanding agreements with a total notional value of $48 million
and a positive mark-to-market position of $0.2 million, which is
included within the $36.9 million reported for accumulated other
comprehensive income related to hedging activities.
Commodity Price Risk - Nontrading Activities: Yankee Gas
maintains a master swap agreement with one customer to supply
gas at fixed prices for a 10-year term extending through 2005.
Under this master swap agreement, the purchase price of a speci-
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fied quantity of gas is effectively fixed over the term of the gas service agreement, which extends through 2005. As of December 31,
2001, the commodity swap agreement had a notional value of
$16.9 million and a negative mark-to-market position of $1.4
million, net of tax, which is included within the $36.9 million
reported for accumulated other comprehensive income related to
hedging activities.
10. Minority Interest In Consolidated Subsidiary

CL&P Capital LP (CL&P LP), a subsidiary of CL&P, previously
had issued $100 million of cumulative 9.3 percent Monthly
Income Preferred Securities (MIPS), Series A. CL&P has the sole
ownership in CL&P LP, as a general partner, and was the guarantor of the MIPS securities. Subsequent to the MIPS issuance,
CL&P LP loaned the proceeds of the MIPS issuance, along with
CL&P’s $3.1 million capital contribution, back to CL&P in the
form of an unsecured debenture. CL&P consolidates CL&P LP
for financial reporting purposes. Upon consolidation, the unsecured debenture was eliminated, and the MIPS securities were
accounted for as a minority interest. In the second quarter of
2001, CL&P repaid the $100 million in notes associated with the
MIPS.
11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair value of each of the following financial instruments:
Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to the short-term nature of cash and cash equivalents.
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) Investments:
Investments held for the benefit of the SERP are recorded at fair
market value. The investments having a cost basis of $6.3 million
and $6.5 million held for benefit of the SERP were recorded at
their fair market values at December 31, 2001 and 2000, of $9
million and $10.1 million, respectively.
Nuclear decommissioning trusts: The investments held in the
NU system companies’ nuclear decommissioning trusts were
marked-to-market by a negative $2.5 million as of December 31,
2001, and a positive $117.6 million as of December 31, 2000,
with corresponding offsets to the accumulated provision for
depreciation.
Preferred stock and long-term debt: The fair value of the NU
system’s fixed-rate securities is based upon the quoted market
price for those issues or similar issues. Adjustable rate securities are
assumed to have a fair value equal to their carrying value. The carrying amounts of the NU system’s financial instruments and the
estimated fair values are as follows:
At December 31, 2001

(Millions of Dollars)

Preferred stock not subject
to mandatory redemption
Long-term debt —
First mortgage bonds
Other long-term debt
Rate reduction bonds

Carrying Amount

$

116.2
795.9
1,552.1
2,018.4

Fair Value

$

62.4

At December 31, 2000

(Millions of Dollars)

Carrying Amount

Preferred stock not subject
to mandatory redemption
Preferred stock subject to
mandatory redemption
Long-term debt —
First mortgage bonds
Other long-term debt
MIPS

$

136.2

Fair Value

$

159.9

40.8

42.0

1,008.1
1,342.2
100.0

1,012.5
1,290.6
100.5

12. Other Comprehensive Income

The accumulated balance for each other comprehensive income
item is as follows:
(Millions of Dollars)

Qualified cash flow
hedging instruments
Unrealized gains
on securities
Minimum pension
liability adjustments
Accumulated other
comprehensive
income/(loss)

(Millions of Dollars)

December 31,
2000

$

—

Current
Period Change

$ (36.9)

December 31,
2001

$ (36.9)

2.4

2.6

5.0

(0.6)

—

(0.6)

$ 1.8
December 31,
1999

Qualified cash flow
hedging instruments
$ —
Unrealized gains
on securities
2.1
Minimum pension
liability adjustments
(0.6)
Accumulated other
comprehensive income $ 1.5

$ (34.3)
Current
Period Change

$

$

—

$ (32.5)

December 31,
2000

$

—

0.3

2.4

—

(0.6)

0.3

$

1.8

The changes in the components of other comprehensive
income are reported net of the following income tax effects:
(Millions of Dollars)

2000

2001

Qualified cash flow
hedging instruments
$ 2.3
Unrealized gains
on securities
(1.9)
Minimum pension
liability adjustments
—
Accumulated other
comprehensive income/
(loss)
$ 0.4

$

$

—

1999
$

—

(0.2)

(0.1)

—

—

(0.2)

$

(0.1)

847.2
1,554.6
2,061.8
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Accumulated other comprehensive income mark-to-market
adjustments of NU’s qualified cash flow hedging instruments are
as follows:
(Millions of Dollars, Net of Tax)

Balance at January 1, 2001 (inception date)
Hedged transactions recognized into earnings
Change in fair value
Cash flow transactions entered into
for the period
Net change associated with the current period
hedging transactions
Total mark-to-market adjustments included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss

December 31, 2001

$

12.3
4.5
(29.6)

13. Earnings Per Share

EPS is computed based upon the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during each year. Diluted EPS is
computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the potential dilutive effect if certain
securities are converted into common stock.
The following table sets forth the components of basic and
diluted EPS:

(24.1)
(49.2)
$

(36.9)

(Millions of Dollars,
except share information)

2001

Income before preferred dividends of subsidiaries
Preferred dividends of subsidiaries
Income before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting change
Extraordinary loss, net of tax benefit
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit
Net income/(loss)

$

Basic EPS common shares outstanding (average)
Dilutive effect of employee stock options
Fully diluted EPS common shares outstanding (average)
Basic earnings/(loss) per common share:
Income before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting change
Extraordinary loss, net of tax benefit
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit
Net income/(loss)

135,632,126
285,297

Fully diluted earnings/(loss) per common share:
Income before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting change
Extraordinary loss, net of tax benefit
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit
Net income/(loss)
14. Segment Information

The NU system is organized between regulated utilities (electric
and gas since March 1, 2000) and competitive energy subsidiaries.
The regulated utilities segment represents approximately 68 percent and 85 percent of the NU system’s total revenues for the
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and is
comprised of several business units.
Regulated utilities revenues primarily are derived from residential, commercial and industrial customers and are not dependent
on any single customer. In 2001, the competitive energy subsidiaries segment had one customer with revenues in excess of 10
percent of its total revenues, CL&P. The purchases by CL&P represented approximately 22 percent, of total competitive energy
subsidiaries’ revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001. In
2000, the purchases by two customers, one unaffiliated company

48

273.2
7.3

$

265.9
—
(22.4)
$

243.5

135,917,423

$

2000
219.5
14.2
205.3
(233.9)
—
(28.6)

141,549,860
417,356
141,967,216

$

1.97
—
(0.17)

$

$

1.80

$

$

1.96
—
(0.17)

$

$

1.79

$

$

$

1999
57.0
22.8
34.2
—
—
34.2

131,415,126
616,447
132,031,573

1.45
(1.65)
—
(0.20)

$

1.45
(1.65)
—
(0.20)

$

$

$

0.26
—
—
0.26
0.26
—
—
0.26

and CL&P, represented approximately 15 percent and 34 percent,
respectively, of total competitive energy subsidiaries’ revenues for
the year ended December 31, 2000.
The competitive energy subsidiaries segment in the following
table includes SES, a provider of energy management, demandside management and related consulting services for commercial,
industrial and institutional electric companies and electric utility
companies; HWP, a company engaged in the production of electric power; NGC, a corporation that acquires and manages generation facilities; NGS, a corporation that maintains and services
any fossil or hydroelectric facility that is acquired or contracted
with for fossil or hydroelectric generation services, and; Select
Energy, a corporation engaged in the marketing, transportation,
storage, and sale of energy commodities, at wholesale, in designated geographical areas and in the marketing of electricity to retail
customers.
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Other in the following table includes the results for Mode 1,
an investor in a fiber-optic communications network. Other also
includes the results of the nonenergy related subsidiaries of Yan-

kee. Interest expense included in Other primarily relates to the
debt of NU parent. Inter-segment eliminations are also included
in Other.
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Regulated Utilities
Electric

(Millions of Dollars)

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income/(loss)
Other income, net
Interest expense, net
Income tax expense
Preferred dividends
Income before cumulative
effect of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of tax benefit
Net income/(loss)
Total assets

$

4,287.0
(3,795.5)

$

Competitive
Energy
Subsidiaries

Gas

378.0
(327.9)

$

2,964.0
(2,919.1)

Eliminations
and
Other

$

(755.2)
707.8

Total

$

6,873.8
(6,334.7)

491.5
72.8
(199.3)
(154.3)
(7.3)

50.1
4.1
(14.0)
(14.3)
—

44.9
5.8
(42.9)
(2.8)
—

(47.4)
104.9
(23.4)
(2.5)
—

539.1
187.6
(279.6)
(173.9)
(7.3)

203.4

25.9

5.0

31.6

265.9

—

—

(22.0)

(0.4)

(22.4)

$

203.4

$

25.9

$

$

8,730.3

$

890.0

$

(17.0)
1,017.9

$

31.2

$

(396.8)

$

243.5

$ 10,241.4

For the Year Ended December 31, 2000

Regulated Utilities
Electric

(Millions of Dollars)

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income/(loss)
Other (loss)/income, net
Interest expense, net
Income tax expense
Preferred dividends
Income/(loss) before
extraordinary loss
Extraordinary loss, net of
tax benefit
Net income/(loss)
Total assets

$

4,738.5
(4,078.1)
660.4
(11.6)
(191.9)
(173.4)
(14.2)

$

269.3
(214.2)
$
55.1
$ 9,620.0

Competitive
Energy
Subsidiaries

Gas

251.2
(224.2)
27.0
(7.1)
(12.2)
(6.5)
—

$

1.2

$
$

—
1.2
912.6

1,894.9
(1,830.0)
64.9
(4.7)
(53.4)
(0.1)
—

Eliminations
and
Other

$ (1,008.0)
950.5
(57.5)
9.1
(41.8)
18.3
—

6.7

$
$

(19.7)
(13.0)
684.1

(71.9)

$
$

—
(71.9)
(999.6)

Total

$ 5,876.6
(5,181.8)
694.8
(14.3)
(299.3)
(161.7)
(14.2)
205.3
(233.9)
$
(28.6)
$ 10,217.1

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

(Millions of Dollars)

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income/(loss)
Other (loss)/income, net
Interest expense, net
Income tax expense
Preferred dividends
Net income/(loss)
Total assets

Competitive
Energy
Subsidiaries

Regulated Utilities
Electric

$

3,846.1
(3,241.4)
604.7
(105.2)
(245.5)
(150.9)
(22.8)
$
80.3
$ 9,302.6
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$

$
$

648.8
(713.5)
(64.7)
5.6
(3.2)
25.3
—
(37.0)
308.2

Eliminations
and
Other

$

$
$

(23.7)
9.1
(14.6)
(6.6)
(14.9)
27.0
—
(9.1)
77.3

Total

$ 4,471.2
(3,945.8)
525.4
(106.2)
(263.6)
(98.6)
(22.8)
$
34.2
$ 9,688.1
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Consolidated Statements of Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Quarter Ended (a) (b)

(Thousands of Dollars, except per share information)

March 31

June 30

September 30

December 31

$ 1,800,544
159,595
134,595

$ 1,583,294
133,472
46,732

$ 1,723,894
113,378
34,631

$ 1,766,094
132,729
49,984

—

—

—

2001

Operating Revenues
Operating Income
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
Net of Tax Benefit
Net Income
Basic Earnings/(Loss) per Common Share:
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
Net of Tax Benefit
Net Income
Diluted Earnings/(Loss) per Common Share:
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
Net of Tax Benefit
Net Income

2000
Operating Revenues
Operating Income
Income Before Extraordinary Loss
Extraordinary Loss, Net of Tax Benefit
Net Income/(Loss)
Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Common Share:
Income Before Extraordinary Loss
Extraordinary Loss, Net of Tax Benefit
Net Income/(Loss)
Diluted Earnings/(Loss) Per Common Share:
Income Before Extraordinary Loss
Extraordinary Loss, Net of Tax Benefit
Net Income/(Loss)

(22,432)
$

112,163

$

46,732

$

34,631

$

49,984

$

0.93

$

0.35

$

0.26

$

0.38

(0.15)

—

—

0.78

$

0.35

$

0.26

$

0.38

$

0.93

$

0.35

$

0.26

$

0.38

$

0.35

$

0.26

$

0.38

(0.15)
$

0.78

—

—

—

$ 1,382,321
197,834
74,587
—
$
74,587

$ 1,414,973
146,537
12,206
—
$
12,206

$ 1,581,947
177,343
65,543
—
$
65,543

$ 1,497,379
173,079
52,959
(233,881)
$ (180,922)

$

$

$

$

$
$
$

0.55
—
0.55
0.55
—
0.55

$
$
$

0.09
—
0.09
0.08
—
0.08

(a) Certain reclassifications of prior years’ data have been made to conform with the current year’s presentation.
(b) Summation of quarterly data may not equal annual data due to rounding.
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Selected Consolidated Financial Data (Unaudited)
(Thousands of Dollars, except
percentages and share information)

2001

2000

1999

1998

1997

$ 3,822,139
10,241,409
4,576,858
17,539

$ 3,547,215
10,217,149
4,739,417
159,879

$ 3,947,434
9,688,052
5,216,456
181,293

$ 6,170,881
10,387,381
6,030,402
209,279

$ 6,463,158
10,414,412
6,472,504
207,731

$ 5,876,620

$ 4,471,251

$ 3,767,714

$ 3,834,806

Balance Sheet Data:

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Total Assets
Total Capitalization (a)
Obligations Under Capital Leases (a)
Income Data:

Operating Revenues
$ 6,873,826
Income/(Loss) Before Extraordinary Loss and
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
Net of Tax Benefits
265,942
Extraordinary Loss, Net of Tax Benefit
—
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
Net of Tax Benefit
(22,432)
Net Income/(Loss)
$
243,510

205,295
(233,881)

$

—
(28,586)

$

34,216
—

(146,753)
—

(129,962)
—

—
34,216

—
$ (146,753)

—
$ (129,962)

$

$

Common Share Data:

Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Common Share:
Income/(Loss) Before Extraordinary Loss and
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
Net of Tax Benefits
$
Extraordinary Loss, Net of Tax Benefit
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
Net of Tax Benefit
Net Income/(Loss)
$
Fully Diluted Earnings/(Loss) per Common Share:
Income/(Loss) Before Extraordinary Loss and
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
Net of Tax Benefits
$
Extraordinary Loss, Net of Tax Benefit
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
Net of Tax Benefit
Net Income/(Loss)
$
Basic Common Shares Outstanding
(Average)
Fully Diluted Common Shares
Outstanding (Average)
Dividends Per Share
Market Price - Closing (high) (c)
Market Price - Closing (low) (c)
Market Price - Closing (end of year) (c)
Book Value Per Share (end of year)
Rate of Return Earned on Average
Common Equity (%)
Market-to-Book Ratio (end of year)

1.97
—

$

(0.17)
1.80

$

1.96
—

$

(0.17)
1.79

$

1.45
(1.65)
—
(0.20)

1.45
(1.65)
—
(0.20)

$

$

$

$

0.26
—
—
0.26

0.26
—
—
0.26

$

$

$

(1.12)
—
—
(1.12)

(1.12)
—
—
(1.12)

$

$

$

(1.01)
—
—
(1.01)

(1.01)
—
—
(1.01)

135,632,126

141,549,860

131,415126

130,549,760

129,567,708

135,917,423
$
0.45
$
23.75
$
16.80
$
17.63
$
16.27

141,967,216
$
0.40
$
24.25
$
18.25
$
24.25
$
15.43

132,031,573
$
0.10
$
22.00
$
13.56
$
20.56
$
15.80

130,549,760
$
—
$
17.25
$
11.69
$
16.00
$
15.63

129,567,708
$
0.25
$
14.25
$
7.63
$
11.81
$
16.67

11.2
1.1

(1.3)
1.6

1.6
1.3

(7.0)
1.0

(5.8)
0.7

47%
4
49
100%

40%
5
55
100%

34%
5
61
100%

34%
6
60
100%

Capitalization:

Common Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock (a) (b)
Long-Term Debt (a)

46%
3
51
100%

(a) Includes portions due within one year.
(b) Excludes $100 million of MIPS.
(c) Market price information reflects closing prices as presented in the Wall Street Journal.
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Consolidated Electric Sales Statistics (Unaudited)
2000

1999

1998

1997

$ 1,469,439
1,256,126
566,625
1,884,082
45,998
16,932
96,666
5,335,868
461,716
79,036
$ 5,876,620

$ 1,517,913
1,272,969
560,801
926,056
45,564
24,659
52,357
4,400,319
—
70,932
$ 4,471,251

$ 1,475,363
1,273,146
568,913
336,623
47,682
22,479
16,429
3,740,635
—
27,079
$ 3,767,714

$ 1,499,394
1,266,449
560,782
329,764
48,867
21,476
47,446
3,774,178
—
60,628
$ 3,834,806

12,940
13,023
7,130
42,127
333
107
75,660

12,912
12,850
7,050
33,575
314
147
66,848

12,162
12,477
6,948
9,742
320
193
41,842

12,099
12,091
6,801
8,034
318
241
39,584

1,984,069

1,576,068
166,114
7,701
3,917
1,753,800
185,328
1,939,128

1,569,932
164,932
7,721
3,908
1,746,493
—
1,746,493

1,555,013
162,500
7,847
3,890
1,729,250
—
1,729,250

1,535,134
159,350
7,804
3,929
1,706,217
—
1,706,217

8,251

8,233

8,243

7,799

7,898

2001
Revenues: (Thousands)

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Other Utilities
Streetlighting and Railroads
Nonfranchised Sales
Miscellaneous
Total Electric
Gas
Other
Total

$ 1,490,487
1,303,351
549,808
2,663,930
43,889
(438)
115,196
6,166,223
566,814
140,789
$ 6,873,826

Sales: (kWh - Millions)

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Other Utilities
Streetlighting and Railroads
Nonfranchised Sales
Total

13,322
13,751
6,790
51,789
332
—
85,984

Customers: (Average)

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Other
Total Electric
Gas
Total

1,610,154
171,218
7,730
3,969
1,793,071
190,998

Average Annual Use Per
Residential Customer (kWh)
Average Annual Bill Per
Residential Customer

$

923.70

$

934.94

$

969.38

$

946.80

$

978.72

Average Revenue Per kWh:

Residential
Commercial
Industrial

52

11.20¢
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11.76¢
9.91
7.95

12.14¢
10.20
8.19

12.39¢
10.47
8.25
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Trustees and Officers

Northeast Utilities Trustees as of
March 1, 2002

O. Kay Comendul

Richard H. Booth

Randy A. Shoop

President and Chief Executive
Officer,Hartford Steam Boiler
Inspection & Insurance Company

Assistant Treasurer-Finance

Cotton Mather Cleveland

President, Mather Associates
Sanford Cloud, Jr.

President and Chief Executive
Officer,The National Conference for
Community and Justice
James F. Cordes

Retired, Former Executive Vice
President, The Coastal Corporation
E. Gail de Planque

President, Strategy Matters, Inc.
John H. Forsgren

Vice Chairman, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial
Officer, Northeast Utilities
Raymond L. Golden

Assistant Secretary

Northeast Utilities System
Officers as of March 1, 2002
Northeast Utilities Service
Company Officers
Michael G. Morris

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
John H. Forsgren

Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

Gary D. Simon

Vice President-Transmission Business
Gregory B. Butler

Vice President, Secretary and General
Counsel
John B. Keane

Vice President-Administration

Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer, Women’s Health
USA, Inc.

Mary Jo Keating

John F. Swope

Jeffrey R. Kotkin

Attorney

Northeast Utilities Officers as of
March 1, 2002

Vice President-Corporate
Communications

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer
Cheryl W. Grisé

President-Utility Group
Bruce D. Kenyon

President-Generation Group
John H. Forsgren

Vice Chairman, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer
Gregory B. Butler

Vice President, Secretary and General
Counsel
David R. McHale

Vice President and Treasurer
John P. Stack

Vice President- Accounting and
Controller

NAESCO – North Atlantic Energy
Service Company

Yankee – Yankee Gas Services
Company

Bruce D. Kenyon

President and Chief Executive Officer,
NAESCO

Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, PSNH, WMECO and
Yankee

Ted C. Feigenbaum

Kerry J. Kuhlman

Frederic Lee Klein

Executive Vice President and Chief
Nuclear Officer, NAESCO
Secretary, NAESCO

President and Chief Operating
Officer, CL&P

Unregulated Company Officers

Gary A. Long

NGC – Northeast Generation
Company

President and Chief Operating
Officer, PSNH
Dennis E. Welch

President and Chief Operating
Officer, Yankee
Christopher L. Beschler

Vice President-Operations, Yankee
David H. Boguslawski

Vice President-Transmission Business,
CL&P, PSNH and WMECO
Vice President-Energy Delivery
Services, CL&P
John M. MacDonald

SESI – Select Energy Services, Inc.

NGS - Northeast Generation
Services Company
Select – Select Energy, Inc.
Bruce D. Kenyon

President and Chief Executive Officer,
NGS
President, NGC
William W. Schivley

Chairman of the Board, SESI
President, Select
James B. Redden

President, SESI

Jean M. LaVecchia

Vice President-Operations, PSNH

Frank P. Sabatino

Vice President-Human Resources and
Environmental Services

David R. McHale

Senior Vice President-Power
Marketing, Select
Vice President, NGC

Keith R. Marvin
Michael G. Morris

Nuclear Company Officers

Dana L. Louth

Vice President-Investor Relations

Clerk, WMECO

WMECO – Western Massachusetts
Electric Company

Leon J. Olivier

President-Generation Group

Secretary, CL&P and PSNH

PSNH – Public Service Company of
New Hampshire

Bruce D. Kenyon

David H. Boguslawski

Robert E. Patricelli

Patricia A. Wood

President-Utility Group

Elizabeth T. Kennan

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer,
Northeast Utilities

CL&P – The Connecticut Light
and Power Company

President and Chief Operating
Officer, WMECO

Cheryl W. Grisé

Senior Vice President-Enterprise
Development and Analysis

Michael G. Morris

O. Kay Comendul

Michael G. Morris

Independent Consultant
President Emeritus, Mount Holyoke
College

Electric & Gas Operating Company
Officers

Vice President-Corporate Services and
Chief Information Officer
David R. McHale

Vice President and Treasurer

Vice President and Treasurer, PSNH
and WMECO
James A. Muntz

Vice President-Customer Services,
CL&P
Rodney O. Powell

Vice President-Governmental Affairs

Vice President-Customer Relations,
CL&P

Raymond P. Necci

Paul E. Ramsey

Margaret L. Morton

Vice President-Utility Group Services
John P. Stack

Vice President-Accounting and
Controller
Lisa J. Thibdaue

Vice President-Rates, Regulatory
Affairs and Compliance

Vice President-Customer Services,
PSNH
John P. Stack

Vice President-Accounting and
Controller, CL&P, PSNH, WMECO
and Yankee
Roger C. Zaklukiewicz

Vice President-Transmission
Engineering and Operations, CL&P,
PSNH and WMECO
Randy A. Shoop

Treasurer, CL&P

H. Donald Burbank

Vice President-Customer Service,
SESI
David S. Dayton

Vice President- SESI
John J. Roman

Vice President- Accounting and
Control, Select
Stephen J. Fabiani

Vice President-Retail Sales and
Marketing, Select
Linda A. Jensen

Vice President-Finance, Treasurer and
Clerk, SESI
William J. Nadeau

Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer, NGS
Vice President, NGC
Frederic Lee Klein

Secretary, NGC, NGS and Select
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Shareholder Information

Shareholders

As of December 31, 2001, there were 76,028 common shareholders of record of Northeast Utilities holding an aggregate of
148, 890,640 common shares.
Common Share Information

The common shares of Northeast Utilities are listed on the New
York Stock Exchange. The ticker symbol is “NU,” although it is
frequently presented as “Noeast Util” and/or “NE Util” in various
financial publications. The high and low sales prices and dividends
paid for the past two years, by quarters, are shown in the chart
below.
Quarterly
Dividend
Year
Quarter
High
Low Per Share
2000
First
$21.50
$18.00
$ 0.10
Second
23.1250
20.8125
0.10
Third
23.9600
21.50
0.10
Fourth
24.5600
18.50
0.10
2001

First
Second
Third
Fourth

$23.75
20.75
20.79
19.25

$16.80
17.35
18.30
16.95

$ 0.10
0.10
0.125
0.125

Transfer Agents and Registrars

The Bank of New York
Investor Relations Department
P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258
1-800-524-4458

Northeast Utilities is the parent company of the NU system (collectively referred to as NU). NU operates New England’s largest
energy delivery system with 1.77 million electric customers in
Connecticut, New Hampshire and Massachusetts and 187,000
natural gas customers in Connecticut. It is one of the largest competitive energy suppliers in New England.
Current NU subsidiaries are listed below:
Electric and Gas Operating Subsidiaries

The Connecticut Light and Power Company
Holyoke Water Power Company
Public Service Company of New Hampshire
Western Massachusetts Electric Company
North Atlantic Energy Corporation
Yankee Gas Services Company
Nonutility Subsidiaries

NU Enterprises, Inc.
(unregulated businesses holding company)
HEC Inc.
(energy management)
Mode 1 Communications
(telecommunications)
Northeast Generation Company
(generation ownership)
Northeast Generation Services Company
(generation services)
Select Energy, Inc.
(energy services)
Support subsidiaries

Northeast Utilities Atlantic Energy Service Corporation
(Seabrook nuclear operations)
Northeast Utilities Nuclear Energy Company
(Millstone nuclear operations)
Northeast Utilities Service Company
(system-wide service)

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Corporate Stock Transfer Department
P.O. Box 8200
Boston, Massachusetts 02266-8200
Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Northeast Utilities will be
held at 10:30 a.m. on May 14, 2002 at The Event Center at C.R.
Sparks in Bedford, N.H.
Form 10-K

Realty Subsidiaries

NorConn Properties, Inc. (Connecticut)
Properties, Inc. (New Hampshire)
The Quinnehtuk Company (Massachusetts)
The Rocky River Realty Company (Connecticut)

Northeast Utilities will provide shareholders a copy of its 2001
Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission on
Form 10-K, including the financial statements and schedules thereto, without charge, upon receipt of a written request sent to:
O. Kay Comendul
Assistant Secretary
Northeast Utilities
P.O. Box 270
Hartford, Connecticut 01641-0270
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Northeast Utilities
P.O. Box 270
Hartford, Connecticut 06141-0270
1-800-286-5000
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